
210 Stonewall Avenue West • Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone (770) 461-6029 • Facsimile (770) 460-4238 

www.fayetteville-ga.gov 

 

 

 

MAYOR 
Edward J. Johnson, Jr. 

COUNCIL 
Mayor Pro Tem 
Rich Hoffman 
T. Joe Clark 
Niyah Glover 
Darryl Langford, 
Scott Stacy 

CITY MANAGER 
Ray Gibson 

INTERIM CITY CLERK 
Chelsea Siemen 

DATE: 
4/18/2024 

6:00 PM 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 

   

Call to Order 

Opening Prayer 

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

Approval of Agenda 

1. Approval of the Minutes from the March 21, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the March 26, 2024, City Council Work Session 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3. Consider #0-02-24 and #0-03-24 - Requests from Crescent Communities, for the property located 
at Hwy 54 East/Weatherly Drive/Knight Way (Parcel No. 053116006), to amend the Future Land 
Use Map from Neighborhood Center to Mixed Residential and to rezone the property from 
Neighborhood Commercial to Residential Townhouse and Condominium (R-THC): REQUEST TO 
TABLE BY APPLICANT  

4. Consider #0-8-24 - Fiscal Year 2024 Mid-Year Budget Amendment: Presented by Director of 
Finance and Administration Mike Bush  

NEW BUSINESS 

5. Consider Step One Annexation Request from the Fayette County Development Authority for a 
177.81-acre tract south of Banks Road and abutting Highway 54 East (Parcel 0532 008): Presented 
by Director of Community and Economic Development David Rast  

CONSENT AGENDA 

6. R-18-24 - Adoption of Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2024 Annual Update for Fiscal Year 
2023 

http://www.fayetteville-ga.gov/


210 Stonewall Avenue West • Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone (770) 461-6029 • Facsimile (770) 460-4238 

www.fayetteville-ga.gov 

7. R-19-24 - Adoption of Local Amendments to the Georgia State Minimum Standard Plumbing Code 

8. R-20-24 - Severance Policy  

9. #0-9-24 - Amendments to Purchasing Policy  

10. #0-10-24 - Public Hearing Procedures 

11. #0-11-24 - Work Session Procedures  

REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

City Manager & Staff Reports 

City Council and Committee Reports 

Mayors Comments & Public Comments 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

http://www.fayetteville-ga.gov/


 

City of Fayetteville 

Mayor and City Council  

Regular Meeting 

Minutes 

March 21, 2024 

 

Call to Order 

 

The Mayor and City Council of Fayetteville met in regular session on March 21, 2024, in the Council 

Chambers at City Hall. Council Members present: Darryl Langford, Joe Clark, Niyah Glover, Rich 

Hoffman, and Scott Stacy. The City Attorney present was Patrick Jaugstetter. Staff members present 

were City Manager Ray Gibson and Interim City Clerk Chelsea Siemen. Mayor Ed Johnson called the 

meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Opening prayer was delivered by Council Member Glover followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Stacy made a motion to approve the agenda with the amendment to table item #6 – Consideration of 

#0-2-24 and #0-3-24. Glover seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Clark moved to approve the minutes from the February 8, 2024, City Council Retreat. Hoffman 

seconded the motion. Glover abstained. The motion carried 4-0-1.  

 

Hoffman moved to approve the minutes from the February 9, 2024, City Council Retreat. Langford 

seconded the motion. Glover Abstained. The motion carried 4-0-1. 

 

Clark moved to approve the minutes from the February 15, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting. 

Langford seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.  

 

Stacy moved to approve the minutes from the February 27, 2024, City Council Work Session. Clark 

seconded the motion. Langford abstained. The motion carried 4-0-1.  

  

Recognitions and Presentations: 

 

Commander of VFW Post 3650 Larry Dell presented the VFW Public Safety Employee of the Year 

Awards to Fire Fighter Josh Collins and Police Officer Kenneth Marcucci.  

 

Public Hearing: 

 

Consider #0-02-24 and #0-03-24 - Requests from Crescent Communities, for the property located at 

Hwy 54 East/Weatherly Drive/Knight Way (Parcel No. 053116006), to amend the Future Land Use 

Map from Neighborhood Center to Mixed Residential and to rezone the property from Neighborhood 

Commercial to Residential Townhouse and Condominium (R-THC) – TABLED 

 

 



Mayor Johnson called: Consider #0-04-24 and #0-05-24 - Requests from Rochester | DCCM, for the 

property located at the northwest quadrant of the Highway 54 West and Gingercake Road Intersection 

(Parcel Nos. 0522 003, 0522 033, and 0522 048), to amend the Future Land Use Map from 

Neighborhood Center to Neighborhood Residential 2. 

 

Director of Community and Economic Development David Rast stated that the applicant, NextMetro 

Communities, LLC, assembled five parcels of land within the northwest quadrant of the HWY 54/ 

Gingercake RD intersection with the desire to develop a gated, 254-unit horizontal multi-family 

community consisting of one-, two- and three-bedroom cottage homes.   

 

The property is currently zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial and designated as Neighborhood 

Center within the 2022 Comprehensive Plan Update and the associated Future Land Use Map.  In 

order for the project to move forward, the Applicant is requesting an amendment to the Comprehensive 

Plan and the Future Land Use Map.  Should that request be approved, the Applicant is requesting the 

property be rezoned from Neighborhood Center to Neighborhood Residential 2 to allow for residential 

purposes.    

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Staff do not recommend approval of either of these 

requests. However, if the Council were to move forward with approval, City Staff has multiple 

conditions they would like Council to consider applying to the approval.  

 

Den Webb from Smith, Gambrell, & Russell, LLP. spoke in representation of the applicant, 

NextMetro. Mr. Webb stated that the 30 acres, in which they are requesting a FLU map amendment 

and rezoning on, have been commercially zoned for years with no development. With the current 

zoning, a chain retail store, such as Lowes, could come develop that land. The applicants feel that this 

development would complement that area better and believe that residents would rather have 

residential built on the land, rather than a store like Lowes. Mr. Webb also stated that at the beginning 

of this process, City Staff supported the project and recommended approval of their requests.  

 

Richard Moses, a resident that lives off Rehobeth Way, read online reviews from residents that live at 

established Avilla developments built by NextMetro in other states. Mr. Moses stated that there are 

endless negative reviews about the cheap quality and terrible property management of these 

developments, and he does not want to see them develop here. 

 

Mike Loper, another resident from Rehobeth Way, spoke of his concerns surrounding the disruption 

of land stabilization that this development would create if they were allowed to move forward with 

this project. 

 

Monk Robinson, a resident of Swansea Lane, voiced his displeasure at the high prices that this 

development is wanting to rent these properties for and feels that it does not cater to the City of 

Fayetteville residents or the young families that are trying to settle here.  

 

Melody Goodrich, resident at Creekside Trail, gave her support for this development; stating that it 

would be ideal for nurses that work at Piedmont Hospital and other young adults who grew up in 

Fayette County and want to remain in the area.  



 

Shandry Hembree, another resident from Swansea Lane, spoke of her concerns about the traffic that 

this development would add to the already congested area.  

 

Wilfred Moody, resident on Braymont Road, echoed concerns about the danger of that intersection 

and traumatic effect it would have on kids riding a school bus if they were to witness some of the 

accidents that have taken place there.   

 

Hoffman moved to deny #0-4-24 (Amend the FLU Map). Langford seconded the motion. The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Hoffman moved to deny #0-5-24 (Rezoning Request). Clark seconded the motion. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

Mayor Johnson called: Consider #0-06-24 and #0-07-24 - Staff Initiated requests, for the property 

located on North 85 Parkway (Parcel No. 0539 11 004), to amend the Future Land Use Map from 

Business Park to Industrial and rezone the property from Neighborhood Commercial (NC) to Light 

Industrial (LI). 

 

Planning and Zoning Planner Nicole Gilbert stated that City Staff is initiating a request for amendment 

to the Future Land Use Map for the property located on North 85 Parkway, as well as a rezoning 

request for this property. The request for the FLU map would change the current use of the property 

from Business Park to Industrial and the rezoning would change the property from Neighborhood 

Commercial to Light Industrial. Mrs. Gilbert stated that Manufacturing is the City’s 5th largest 

employer, yet the percentage of property designated or zoned for this use is minimal and almost fully 

occupied.  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

Stacy moved to approve #0-6-24 (Amend FLU Map). Clark seconded the motion. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Hoffman moved to approve #0-7-24 (Rezoning Request). Clark seconded the motion. The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Johnson called: Consider R-16-24 - Authorizing staff to transmit the Capital Improvements 

Element 2024 Annual Update for FY2023 

 

Mr. Rast explained to maintain the city’s status as a Qualified Local Government (QLG), the city is 

required to submit an annual update to our adopted Capital Improvements Element (CIE) and the 

Annual Impact Fee Financial Report to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and the Georgia 

Department of Community Affairs (DCA) for review. The submittal is in accordance with the 

“Development Impact Fee Compliance Requirements” and the “Minimum Planning Standards and 

Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning” adopted by the Board of Community Affairs pursuant 

to the Georgia Planning Act of 1989. Staff will be notified once ARC and DCA complete their review, 

at which time we will bring the document back to the Mayor and City Council for formal adoption. 



 

There were no public comments. 

 

Clark moved to approve R-16-24. Stacy seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Johnson read the Consent Agenda item(s) and called for a vote.  

 

 R-9-24 - Amendments to the Planning and Zoning Commission ByLaws  

 R-14-24 - 2024 Georgia Cities Week  

 R-15-24 – Job Additions and Reclassifications   

 

Hoffman moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Clark seconded the motion. The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

City Manager and Staff Reports: 

 

City Manager, Ray Gibson wish Council Member Hoffman a belated Happy Birthday.  

 

City Manager, Ray Gibson announced the upcoming events: 

- Summer Concert Series, tickets are now available for purchase. 

- April Coffee with a Cop will be Wednesday April 10th from 10:00 – 11:00 a.m. at 

City Center Park and will be honoring Autism Awareness Month (April)  

- The city has started a City Podcast which can be found on the City’s website. 

City Council and Committee Reports: 

 

Council Member Langford gave a summary of the Economic and Community Development 

Committee meeting that was held to discuss a potential Smokefree Ordinance for the City of 

Fayetteville.  

 

Public Comments: 

 

Edith Underwood, a resident of Rehobeth Way, commented about the lack of street lighting along 

Veterans Parkway as it leads to Trilith.  

 

Joe Walker, resident off N. Georgia Ave., voiced his concerns about on going issues that he has been 

facing with stormwater run off and other issues that have developed since the ditches in the front of 

his property were filled in by neighboring residents in his area.  

 

Executive Session: 

 

Mayor Johnson called for a vote to convey in Executive Session to discuss potential litigation. 

 



Hoffman motioned to proceed into Executive Session. Stacy seconded. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Hoffman moved to conclude Executive Session and return to Regular Session. Stacy seconded the 

motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Hoffman moved to adjourn the meeting. Glover seconded the motion. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

_____________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk 



 

City of Fayetteville 

Mayor and City Council   

Work Session Meeting 

Minutes 

March 26, 2024 

 

Call to Order 

 

The Mayor and City Council of Fayetteville met for Work Session on March 26, 2024, in the Council 

Chambers at City Hall. Council members present were Darryl Langford, Joe Clark, Niyah Glover, 

Rich Hoffman, and Scott Stacy. The City Attorney present was Patrick Jaugstetter. Staff members 

present were City Manager Ray Gibson and Interim City Clerk Chelsea Siemen. Mayor Ed Johnson 

called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Stacy moved to approve the agenda as presented. Langford seconded the motion. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Discussion Items: 

 

Mayor Johnson announced the first discussion item: Amendments to the UDO. 

 

Director of Community and Economic Development gave a short review of each chapter of the UDO. 

He addressed the many concerns that have arisen since the UDO was passed and made suggestions 

that might rectify them.   

 

Consensus: The Mayor and City Council would Like David to compare the ADU square footage 

requirement to Fayette County’s requirement to make sure they are the same. They also asked that 

there be future discussion on buffer options and alternatives. Lastly, they want to consider modifying 

the UDO so that there is a step that brings development plans to Council prior to Planning and Zoning 

Commission meetings.  

 

Mayor Johnson moved onto the next discussion item: Date change for the June City Council Regular 

Meeting. 

 

City Manager Ray Gibson explained that the 2024 Annual City Summit hosted by Georgia Municipal 

Association is scheduled for June 21, 2024 – June 25, 2024, which is the same week as the City Council 

Regular Meeting. Therefore, it is in the best interest of the Mayor and Council to change the date of 

the June meeting to June 6, 2024, since many of the Council Members will need to use June 20, 2024, 

as a travel day to get to the Annual City Summit.  

 

Consensus: The Mayor and Council agreed that changing the date of the June Regular City Council 

meeting to June 6, 2024, would be the best solution.  

 

Mayor Johnson called the last discussion item: Cemetery Tree Removal and Bid options. 



 

Director of Public Service Chris Hindman gave an overview of a request from the Friends of the 

Fayetteville Cemetery to install a fence around the cemetery. To do so, the removal of trees on 

Highway 54 side of the cemetery would be necessary. Mr. Hindman stated that if the Mayor and 

Council were in support of removing the trees to install the fence, it is recommended that the city take 

lead on the hiring and overseeing of the project.  

Consensus: The Mayor and Council like the idea of installing a fence around the cemetery but are 

hesitant about the removal of the trees. They have asked for a before and after model of what the street 

would look like with the trees removed and the fence installed before they decide to move forward 

with the project.  

 

New Business: 

 

Mayor Johnson called for voting item: R-17-24 - Amendments to Professional Services Agreement 

with SAFEbuilt Georgia, LLC. 

 

Director of Community and Economic Development David Rast stated that, as previously discussed, 

SAFEbuilt has offered an amended Service Agreement with a modified fee schedule that is both a 

benefit to the City of Fayetteville and developers within the city limits. It is the staff’s recommendation 

that the amended Service Agreement be executed.  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

Hoffman moved to approve R-17-24. Glover seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Comments: 

 

Angela Knight, a City of Fayetteville business owner, voiced her concerns surrounding the tampering 

of the mural painted on the side of the Twisted Taco building in town square.  

 

Mayor Johnson and City Manger Ray Gibson assured Ms. Knight there are no plans to remove the 

mural entirely but there has been discussion about the need to install a door on that side of the building. 

If a door is installed, they promise to do all they can to preserve it.  

 

Hoffman moved to adjourn the meeting. Stacy seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

_____________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk 



 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 

  

VIA:                Ray Gibson, City Manager 

 

CC:                 Chelsea Siemen, City Clerk 

 

FROM:   Julie Brown, Planning and Zoning Manager  

   

DATE:   March 5, 2024 

 

SUBJECT: Consider Ordinance Nos. 0-02-24 and 0-03-24 - Requests from Crescent 

Communities as they relate to the property located at Hwy 54 East/Weatherly 

Drive/Knight Way (Parcel No. 053116006).  In order to develop the property 

as proposed, the Applicant is requesting: 

 

a. To amend the Future Land Use Map from Neighborhood Center to Mixed 

Residential. 

b. To rezone the property from Neighborhood Commercial to Residential 

Townhouse and Condominium (R-THC). 

 

 
Project overview 

 
The Applicant proposes to develop a 273-unit 

multi-family apartment community consisting 

of five residential buildings, a clubhouse with 

indoor and outdoor amenity space and all 

associated infrastructure. Four of the five 

residential buildings are proposed at four-

stories and will offer one-, two- and three-

bedroom apartments ranging from 720 to 1,375 

square feet in size. Access to the development 

will be provided via new entrances from 

Weatherly Drive and Knight Way. There will 

be no direct access to the development from 

Hwy 54 East. 

 

 

The property is currently zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial and designated as Neighborhood Center on 

the Future Land Use Map.  In order to develop the property as proposed, the Applicant is requesting to 

amend the Future Land Use Map from Neighborhood Center to Mixed Residential, and to rezone the 

property from NC Neighborhood Commercial to R-THC Residential Townhome Condominium.  Should 



the first two requests be approved and the project move forward, the Applicant would return to the Planning 

and Zoning Commission at a later date for conceptual site plan review, and to request a height variance 

from 35’ to 60’ to allow the proposed three- and four-story structures.  

 

Existing conditions 

 
Location Hwy 54 East/ Weatherly Drive and Knight Way 

Parcel Number 053116006 

Acreage 12.27 acres 

Zoning NC Neighborhood Commercial 

Future Land Use Designation Neighborhood Center 

Current use Undeveloped 

Utilities Water and sewer 

 

Existing zoning 
The subject tract and many of the surrounding parcels are zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial. There is 

also a mixture of different residential zoning designations to the north, south and west.  

 
                                            City Zoning                                                                                    Fayette County A-R zoning 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Direction 
Parcel 

Number 
Acreage 

 

 

 

 

Zoning Current use 

North 0531032 7.74 Bay Branch Blvd. RMF-15 Multi-family Residential Residential 

South 0524 154 0.70 775 E Lanier NC Neighborhood Commercial Commercial 

South  0524 158 1.30 795-805 E Lanier NC Neighborhood Commercial Commercial 

South (FC) 052405001 0.61 855 E Lanier AR -Agricultural Residential Residential 

South (FC) 052405006 2.00 865 Hwy 54 E AR -Agricultural Residential Residential 

East  0531 124 18.00 100 Knight Way RMF-15 Multi-family Residential Residential 

West  052101013 1.18 110  Knight Way R-15 Single-family Residential Residential 

West  053116005 1.44 140 Knight Way NC Neighborhood Commercial Commercial 

West 053116012 3.91 190 Knight Way NC Neighborhood Commercial Commercial 



Should the zoning remain NC Neighborhood Commercial, some of the uses currently allowed by-right 

include but are not limited to: 
 

Animal services, fitness club, non-emergency medical transport services, professional office, research 

and testing facilities, self-storage facilities and general retail less than 16,000 SF. 

 

The Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use 

Map designate the subject tract and many of the 

surrounding parcels as a Neighborhood Center.  

The Comprehensive Plan states these areas 

“are primarily located on major thoroughfares 

and near concentrations of existing or planned 

residential neighborhoods.  Current 

developments and uses include smaller strip 

centers, shopping centers with grocery stores, 

storage facilities, offices, retail establishments, 

restaurants, and services.” 

 

This future land use category includes small-

scale neighborhood supporting retail, office 

and service uses which preserve the residential 

character through building scale, building 

appearance, landscaping and signage. With 

close proximity to the Downtown Core and adjacent residential developments, the neighborhood centers 

will include some infill. Mixed-use developments are envisioned to revitalize aging shopping centers and 

help buffer the quieter residential neighborhoods. New development and redevelopment in these areas 

should be compact in form, with free-standing commercial structures and/or some vertical mixed-use 

structures. These areas should include a network of pedestrian-friendly and well-designed streetscapes 

with a distinctive sense of place.     
                                                                                          
 

 

The Applicant is requesting the subject tract be rezoned from NC Neighborhood Commercial to R-THC 

Residential Townhouse and Condominium to allow for a 273-unit multi-family community.  Because that 

use is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan or the Future Land Use Map designation, the Applicant 

must first request an amendment to both the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map. 

 

Section 104.13.B.2.e. of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) states “Where an application to 

amend the future land use map and an application to amend the zoning map each affect the same property 

and are scheduled to be heard at the same hearing, the application to  amend the future land use map shall 

be heard first and action authorized by this UDO taken before the application to amend the zoning map is 

heard and action taken with respect thereto.” 

 

Section 104.13.E.  of the UDO establishes criteria for evaluating requests to rezone property and to amend 

the comprehensive plan and/or future land use map as follows: 

 

2. Amendments to the comprehensive plan and/or future land use map. 

 

The following standards and factors are found to be relevant and shall be used for evaluating 

applications for amendments to the comprehensive plan and/or future land use map: 

 

Request 1:   Consider amendment to Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 

Mixed Residential 

Neighborhood 
Center 

Neighborhood Residential 1 



a. Whether the proposed land use change will permit uses that are suitable in consideration of 

the use and development of adjacent and nearby property or properties; 

 

The proposed three and four-story buildings would not be considered suitable for the surrounding 

commercial buildings found along the Hwy 54 East corridor which are mainly single-story 

structures with a few two-story buildings located sporadically within the corridor. The 

Comprehensive Plan calls for compact free-standing commercial structures with some vertical 

mixed -use structures in this area. 

 

b. Whether the proposed land use change will adversely affect the existing use or usability of 

adjacent or nearby property or properties; 

 

The land use change may not negatively affect the adjoining properties, however the proposed three 

and four-story building heights would adversely affect existing uses and nearby properties. As 

currently zoned the subject tract could be developed for office, retail or a combination of similar 

uses which already exist along the Hwy 54 East corridor.  

 

c. Whether the proposed land use change will result in uses which will or could cause excessive 

or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools; 

 

There is no evidence the proposed development would burden existing schools or infrastructure.  

As a part of their submittal package the Applicant provided a letter from the Board of Education 

stating the development would have minimal impact to Spring Hill Elementary, Bennett’s Mill 

Middle and Fayette County High Schools.  City of Fayetteville Director of Public Services stated 

there is enough capacity for water and sewer service to accommodate the development. 

 

d. Whether the amendment is consistent with the written policies in the comprehensive plan text 

and any applicable small areas studies; 

 

The proposed amendment is not consistent with the vision adopted as a part of the Neighborhood 

Center land use designation within the Comprehensive Plan, which states: 

 

                    This future land use category includes small-scale neighborhood supporting retail, office and   

                    service uses which preserve the residential character through building scale, building 

                    appearance, landscaping and signage. With close proximity to the Downtown Core and  

                    adjacent residential developments, the neighborhood centers will include some infill. Mixed- 

                    use developments are envisioned to revitalize aging shopping centers and help buffer the  

                    quieter residential neighborhoods. New development and redevelopment in these areas should  

                    be compact in form, with free-standing commercial structures and/or some vertical mixed-use  

                    structures. These areas should include a network of pedestrian-friendly and well-designed  

                    streetscapes with a distinctive sense of place.     
                 

e. Whether there are potential impacts on property or properties in an adjoining governmental 

jurisdiction, in cases of proposed changes near municipal boundary lines; 

 

The proposed three and four-story structures will potentially impact adjoining properties because 

of the height difference. There are two properties zoned AR -Agricultural Residential located across 

Hwy 54 East that are in the adjoining Fayette County governmental jurisdiction. Most homes or 

businesses located near or abutting AR zoned property are free-standing single-story structures.  

 



f. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development 

of the affected land areas which support either approval or denial of the proposed land use.  
              

Although the subject tract has been vacant for several years, as currently zoned the subject tract 

could be developed for office, retail or a combination of similar uses which already exist along the 

Hwy 54 East corridor. Existing conditions support denial of the proposed land use. 

 

g. Whether there will be an impact on historic buildings, sites, districts or archaeological 

resources resulting from the proposed change. 

 

There would be no impact on historic buildings, sites, districts or archaeological resources 

associated with the change in land use designation. 

 
Both the Comprehensive Plan and the associated Future Land Use Map were developed with a significant 

amount of public involvement as well as input from the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  

Both of these documents are used as “guides” as we evaluate existing and proposed developments and 

should be re-evaluated on a regular basis to ensure they are consistent with changes and development 

patterns within the community. 

 

Staff is of the opinion the request to amend the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map does not 

meet the objectives of the current plan and recommends the request be denied. 

 

 

Overview 

The Applicant desires to rezone the subject parcel from NC Neighborhood Commercial to R-THC 

Residential Townhouse and Condominium to allow for the development of a 273-unit multi-family 

community.  As proposed, primary access would be provided by new entrances from Weatherly Drive and 

Knight Way. There will be no direct access to the development from Hwy 54 East. 

 

The community would include five residential buildings and will offer one-, two- and three-bedroom 

apartments ranging from 720 to 1,375 square feet in size. Proposed amenities include a pool, clubhouse and 

dog park. 

 

The Applicant submitted a schematic site plan and building elevations with the rezoning request; however, 

these plans are representative of the Applicant’s intent and vision for the property only and are not being 

formally reviewed in detail and/or considered as a part of the rezoning request.  Should the rezoning be 

approved, Staff will work with the Applicant to ensure all conditions of approval and those provided by the 

Planning and Zoning and/or City Council are incorporated into the revised site plan.  That plan, along with 

the schematic building elevations would then be submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 

formal consideration along with a variance request to permit a building height of sixty feet. 

 

UDO - current zoning  

The NC Neighborhood Commercial zoning district was established to create a strong emphasis on 

development and redevelopment of commercial, retail and residential land uses at a higher intensity than 

historically created in the Downtown Mixed-Use District. The district is intended to provide and protect 

areas for community shopping and service facilities convenient to residential neighborhoods, to delineate 

Staff recommendation:   Amendments to Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 

Request 2:   Consider rezoning of Parcel No. 053116006 



the boundary of the neighborhood commercial and retail districts, and to promote infill development that 

creates vibrant, pedestrian-friendly streetscapes through a variety of commercial uses. 

 

UDO - proposed zoning 

The R-THC Residential Townhouse and Condominium zoning district was established for single-family 

attached and/or detached dwellings on smaller urban-scale lots, and allows for limited, but complementary, 

civic, institutional, and recreational uses.  Developments within these districts typically have a more 

traditional and denser urban street and block grid in an effort to promote walkability.  The R-THC district 

permits multiple-family dwelling, townhomes and two-family dwellings as permitted uses. 

 

Rezoning criteria 

Section 104.13.E.  of the UDO establishes criteria for evaluating requests to rezone property and to amend 

the comprehensive plan and/or future land use map as follows: 

 

1. The following standards are relevant and shall be used in balancing the interest in promoting the 

public health, safety, morality, or general welfare against the right to the unrestricted use of 

property and shall govern the exercise of zoning power: 

 

a. Whether the zoning proposal will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 

development of adjacent and nearby property. 

 

Although there are other multi-family developments located near the subject property, they do not 

front Hwy 54 East. Structures located along the Hwy 54 East corridor are mainly single-story  

               with a few two-story buildings located sporadically within the corridor. The Comprehensive Plan  

               calls for compact free-standing commercial structures with some vertical mixed -use structures  

               in this area.  Rezoning the property to allow multi-family community with three and four-story  

               structures would not permit a use suitable to adjacent and nearby properties.   
 

b. Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 

nearby property. 

 

The proposed rezoning would negatively affect the existing or nearby properties as all of the 

surrounding properties fronting Hwy 54 East are currently zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial.  

 

c. Whether the property to be affected by the zoning proposal has a reasonable economic use as 

currently zoned. 

The subject tract has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned.  It could be developed for 

office, retail or a combination of similar uses which already exist along the Hwy 54 East corridor. 

 

d. Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 

burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. 

 

There is no evidence the proposed development would burden existing schools or infrastructure.  

The Applicant provided letters from the Board of Education stating the development would have 

minimal impact to Fayetteville Elementary, Bennett’s Mill Middle and Fayette County High 

Schools. City of Fayetteville Director of Public Services stated there is enough capacity for water 

and sewer service to accommodate the development. 

 

e. Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policy and intent of the comprehensive 

plan. 



Staff recommendation:   Request to rezone the subject parcels from NC to R-THC 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation: 

 

The proposed zoning is not in conformity with the policy and intent of the Comprehensive Plan, 

which states: 

 

                    This future land use category includes small-scale neighborhood supporting retail, office and   

                    service uses which preserve the residential character through building scale, building 

                    appearance, landscaping and signage. With close proximity to the Downtown Core and  

                    adjacent residential developments, the neighborhood centers will include some infill. Mixed- 

                    use developments are envisioned to revitalize aging shopping centers and help buffer the  

                    quieter residential neighborhoods. New development and redevelopment in these areas should  

                    be compact in form, with free-standing commercial structures and/or some vertical mixed-use  

                    structures. These areas should include a network of pedestrian-friendly and well-designed  

                    streetscapes with a distinctive sense of place.     
 

               The NC Neighborhood Commercial zoning district is intended to provide and protect areas for  

                community shopping and service facilities convenient to residential neighborhoods, to delineate  

                the boundary of the neighborhood commercial and retail districts, and to promote infill  

                development that creates vibrant, pedestrian-friendly streetscapes through a variety of 

                commercial uses. 

 

f. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development 

of the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the 

zoning proposal. 

 

Although the subject tract has been vacant for several years, as currently zoned the subject tract 

could be developed for office, retail or a combination of similar uses which already exist along the 

Hwy 54 East corridor. Existing conditions support denial of the rezoning request. 

 

 

 

    

   Staff is of the opinion the subject tract has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned and does not   

   meet the review criteria established within Sec. 104.13.E.1. of the UDO. Therefore, Staff recommends  

   the rezoning request be denied. 

 

 

 

At their meeting on February 27, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously to forward 

the request to amend the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map, and the request to rezone the 

subject parcel from NC to R-THC to the Mayor and City Council with a recommendation that it not be 

approved. 



1

Chelsea Siemen

From: Julie Brown
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 3:11 PM
To: Chelsea Siemen
Cc: Ray Gibson; David Rast
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Render Fayetteville- parcel 053116006

Render Fayette is requesting to table until the May 16 council meeting. 
 
Thanks, 
JB 
 

From: Eric Liebendorfer <ELiebendorfer@crescentcommunities.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 3:08 PM 
To: Julie Brown <jbrown@fayetteville-ga.gov> 
Cc: Adam Kirk <kirk.spld22@gmail.com>; Jon Jordan <jon@hmhwlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Render Fayetteville- parcel 053116006 
 
Thank you, Julie.  
 
ERIC LIEBENDORFER 
Crescent Communities 
M: 703-629-8102 
  
From: Julie Brown <jbrown@fayetteville-ga.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 3:07 PM 
To: Eric Liebendorfer <ELiebendorfer@crescentcommunities.com> 
Cc: Adam Kirk <kirk.spld22@gmail.com>; Jon Jordan <jon@hmhwlaw.com> 
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Render Fayetteville- parcel 053116006 
 
Eric, 
Thank you. We will table the project until the May 16 council meeting. 
Julie  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Eric Liebendorfer <ELiebendorfer@crescentcommunities.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 2:14 PM 
To: Julie Brown <jbrown@fayetteville-ga.gov> 
Cc: Adam Kirk <kirk.spld22@gmail.com>; Jon Jordan <jon@hmhwlaw.com> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Render Fayetteville- parcel 053116006  
  
Hi Julie – Thanks for the patience and sorry for missing you as I was out yesterday. We would like to table one more 
meeting. I believe the land owner is having another conversation with David this week so we’d like to react and try to 
accommodate any further input.  
  
Thanks, Julie. Please give me a call if there are any questions / issues and thanks again.  
  
Eric 
  



1

Chelsea Siemen

From: Julie Brown
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 2:51 PM
To: Chelsea Siemen; David Rast
Cc: nicole gilbert
Subject: FW: Request to Table Items #0-02-24 and 0-03-24 - Crescent Communities FLUM 

Amendment and Rezoning for Parcel No. 053116006

Render Faye eville would like to table to the April 18 council mee ng. 
Thanks, 
JB 
 

From: Jon Jordan <jon@hmhwlaw.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 2:29 PM 
To: Julie Brown <jbrown@fayetteville-ga.gov> 
Cc: Eric Liebendorfer <ELiebendorfer@crescentcommunities.com>; Adam Kirk <kirk.spld22@gmail.com>; Greg Hecht 
<greg@hmhwlaw.com> 
Subject: Request to Table Items #0-02-24 and 0-03-24 - Crescent Communities FLUM Amendment and Rezoning for 
Parcel No. 053116006 
 
Ms. Brown, 
Good a ernoon.  I appreciated speaking with you Friday regarding the above zoning requests and confirming that they 
were not subject to the recent moratorium.  I did check back with my client Crescent Acquisi ons, LLC (Crescent 
Communi es) and we would like to request that considera on of the above-referenced zoning applica ons be tabled at 
the City Council mee ng on March 21 for 30 days (to the following City Council mee ng).  I understand that we do not 
need to a end the mee ng to request that in person, but please do not hesitate to let me know if that changes, or if we 
need to do anything else as part of the tabling request.   
 
Also, just to make sure, the tabling request wouldn’t somehow subject the applica ons to the moratorium would it?  If 
you wouldn’t mind confirming that as well as the tabling of the rezoning applica ons, I would greatly appreciate 
it.  Thank you for all of your help! 
 
Thanks again, 
Jon 
 
Jon W. Jordan                                          Northside Office                                     Southside Office 
Hecht Walker Jordan, P.C.                   Platinum Tower                                       205 Corporate Center Dr. 
Attorneys at Law                                     400 Interstate N Parkway SC              Suite B 
Phone:  404-348-4881                            Suite 860                                                    Stockbridge, Georgia  30281 
Fax:  678-884-1257                                  Atlanta, Georgia  30339 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE - The information and content contained in this e-mail, as well as - any and all attachments, is 
legally privileged and confidential, and intended only for the use and knowledge of the individual or entity named as the 
intended recipient.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail message, or a person responsible for delivering 
this message to the intended recipient, you must not read or play the content herein or any attachments.  Any 
disclosure, copying, printing, distribution or use of the information or attachments contained herein by any unintended 
recipient is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by 
telephone at 404-348-4881, or by return e-mail, and delete this e-mail message and its attachments without reading or 
saving this message. 



Parcel Id# 053116006 

Written Description 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 
121 & 136 of the 5th District of Fayette County, Georgia and 
being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the existing intersection of the Northerly R/W of 
Ga.SR54 (R/W varies) and the Easterly R/W of Weatherly Drive 
(50’ R/W and Miter), this point being THE POINT OF BEGINNING 
(P.O.B).  

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B). 

Thence N 64°07’31”W a distance of 29.16’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar;  
Thence N 00°55’26” E a distance of 104.86’ to an (IPS) 1/2” 
rebar; Thence N 07°53’10” W a distance of 61.72’ to a (IPS) ½” 
rebar; Thence N 00°42’50”E a distance of 148.20’ to an (IPS) ½” 
rebar; Thence around a curve to the right having a radius of 
338.08’ a length of 202.75’ a chord bearing of N 15°54’02” E a 
distance of 199.73’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence N 30°37’07” E 
a distance of 100.00’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve 
to the left having a radius of 463.57’ a length of 246.06’ a 
chord bearing of N 15°15’57” E a distance of 243.18’ to an (IPS) 
1/2” rebar; Thence N 00°28’00”E a distance of 66.15’ to an (IPS) 
½” rebar on the Southerly R/W of  Knight Way (50’ R/W);  Thence 
S 89°55’41” E a distance of 280.79’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar Thence 
around a curve to the right having a radius of 275.33’ a length 
of 436.30’ a chord bearing of S 44°27’18” E a distance of 
392.06’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence S 01°46’37” W a distance 
of 107.24’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to the 
left having a radius of 530.43’ a length of 207.21’ a chord 
bearing of S 10°33’25” E a distance of 205.90’ to an (IPS) 1/2” 
rebar; Thence S 19°57’50”E a distance of 67.52’ to a (CMF) 
concrete monument found; Thence S 29°43’11” W a distance of 
26.57’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence S 64°05’26” W a distance of 
118.86’ to a point; Thence around a curve to the right having a 
radius of 1,849.86’ a length of 659.71’ a chord bearing of  

S 74°18’26” W a distance of 656.22’ to a (CMF) concrete monument 
found, this point being THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.). 

Said property contains 12.27 acres. 

Also granted all easements recorded or unrecorded. 



36 | P a g e

PART 3: IMPACT ANALYSIS REVIEW

IMPACT FORM - A
Analyze the impact of the proposed REZONING and answer the following questions: 

1. Whether the zoning proposal will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby property;

2. Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby property;

3. Whether the property to be affected by the zoning proposal has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned;

4. Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or burdensome use of existing streets,
transportation facilities, utilities, or schools; 

5. Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policy and intent of the comprehensive plan; and

6. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the property which give supporting
grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal. 

The proposed zoning would allow for a use that is suitable and complementary to the use of adjacent and nearby properties.

The proposed zoning will not adversely affect existing use or usability of adjacent properties. Support of the rezoning would positively impact 
neighboring properties through improved public spaces and the addition of potential customers for nearby commercial properies should help 
incentivize further investment.

The propety is current vacant and undeveloped providing no economic use. Under current zoning, commercial uses could be developed but 
the site location, characteristics and market conditions make this economically unviable. 

The proposed zoning would not result in excessive or burdensome use of existing infrastructure. Water / Sewer / Electricity is already 
adjacent to the site and traffic impacts would be less than the current by-right uses. The Board of Education has also provided a 
support / capacity letter.

There are no other existing or changing conditions affecting the subject property. 

The proposed zoning is consistent. 









33 | P a g e

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE
PROPERTY OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE AUTHORIZATION FORM

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION
Project Name
Project Address
Project Parcel Numbers 
Date

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION (OWNER #1)
Name
Mailing Address
Telephone
Email

Type of Request 
____ Rezoning ___ Variance ___Conditional Use ___ Future Land Use Map      (Check all that
apply)

_____________________________ (sign name) I affirm that I am the owner of the tract or parcels of land identified above under the project 
information section and I will serve as the primary contact for this application.

 OR 

I hereby designate __________________________________ (name of project representative) to act in the capacity as my agent for submittal, 
processing, representation, and/or presentation of this application. The designated agent shall be the principal contact person for responding 
to all requests for information and for resolving all issues of concern relative to this application. If this relationship changes at any time prior 
to the completion of this project, it is my sole responsibility to notify the City of Fayetteville Community Development Department of said 
change in writing

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION (OWNER #2)

Name
Mailing Address
Telephone
Email

Type of Request 
____ Rezoning ___ Variance ___Conditional Use ___ Future Land Use Map      (Check all that
apply)

PROPERTY OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE AUTHORIZATION

_____________________________ (sign name) I affirm that I am the owner of the tract or parcels of land identified above under the project 
information section and I will serve as the primary contact for this application.

 OR

I hereby designate __________________________________ (name of project representative) to act in the capacity as my agent for submittal, 
processing, representation, and/or presentation of this application. The designated agent shall be the principal contact person for responding 
to all requests for information and for resolving all issues of concern relative to this application. If this relationship changes at any time prior 
to the completion of this project, it is my sole responsibility to notify the City of Fayetteville Community Development Department of said 
change in writing

053116006

Render Fayetteville
E Highway 54 (Bound by Weatherly Drive and Knight Way)

12/22/23

X

Eric Liebendorfer

XX

1481 Hwy 85 Conn., Brooks, GA 30205
54 Development, Inc. (Chris Knight)

(770)616-9969
chris@templar-dev.com

ELIEBENDORFER
Pencil



34 | P a g e

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE
PART 2: LAND USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION AND AUTHORIZATION FORM

SITE INFORMATION

Project Name Project Address
Parcel ID Property Size
Date 
Type of Request
(Check all that apply)

___ Zoning Amendment     __Future Land Use Amendment
___ Conditional Use  __ Variance 

REQUEST OVERVIEW

Zoning Amendment Request (If Applicable) 
Impact Form A (Required)

Existing Zoning Proposed Zoning

Future Land Use Amendment Request (If Applicable) 
Impact Form B (Required) 

Existing Land Use Proposed Land Use

Conditional Use Request (If Applicable)

Impact Form C (Required) 

Current Zoning Type of Use Request
Variance Request(S)  (If Applicable)

Impact Form D (Required) 

Request 1 

Article/Section

Request 2

Article/Section Use additional sheets if necessary

Request 3

Article/Section

OTHER INFORMAITON

Are there Existing 
Deed Restrictions or 
Easements?

____ Yes    ____ No Are utilities available on site:  ____ Yes    ____ No

Existing Land Use:
check all that apply

___  Residential   ___  Commercial  ___  Mixed Use     ___ Public/Institutional
___  Industrial      ___  Vacant/Undeveloped    ___  Agricultural/Parks/Conservation

Proposed Land Use:
check all that apply

___  Residential   ___  Commercial  ___  Mixed Use     ___ Public/Institutional 
___  Industrial      ___  Vacant/Undeveloped    ___  Agricultural/Parks/Conservation

E Highway 54 
053116006 12.27
12/22/23

X X
X

NC R-THC

Neighborhood Center Mixed Residential

202.20 - Chart, R-THC Max. height (ft.)

Request to change Max. height (ft.) to 60 fr. to allow for 3-story and 4-story buildings

X X

X

X

Render Fayetteville



36 | P a g e

PART 3: IMPACT ANALYSIS REVIEW

IMPACT FORM - B
Analyze the impact of the proposed amendments to the comprehensive plan and/or future land use map and answer 
the following questions:

1. Whether the proposed land use change will permit uses that are suitable in consideration of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property or properties;

2. Whether the proposed land use change will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby
property or properties;

3. Whether the proposed land use change will result in uses which will or could cause excessive or burdensome use of
existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools;

4. Whether the amendment is consistent with the written policies in the comprehensive plan text and any applicable
small areas studies;

5. Whether there are potential impacts on property or properties in an adjoining governmental jurisdiction, in cases of 
proposed changes near municipal boundary lines;

6. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the affected land 
areas which support either approval or denial of the proposed land use change; and

7. Whether there will be an impact on historic buildings, sites, districts or archaeological resources resulting from the 
proposed change.

The proposed land use change would allow for uses that are suitable and complementary to the use and development of adjacent / nearby 
properties. The proposed development would be complimentary to the surrounding properties which are  commercial and residential uses.

There will be no impact on historic buildings, sites, districts or archaeological resources from this change.

There are no other existing or changing conditions affecting the subject land. 

There will be no impacts on property or properties in any adjoining jurisdiction. 

The proposed land use change would not result in excessive or burdensome use of existing infrastructure. Water / Sewer  / Electricity is 
already adjacent to the site and traffic impacts would be less than the current by-right uses. The Board of Education has also provided a 
support / capacity letter.

The proposed amendment is consistent. 

The proposed land use change would not adversely affect the existing use or future usability of adjacent properties. The proposed plan 
would be benefit neighboring commercial properties and the land use change would actually reduce impacts to commercial such as traffic.





 

Fayetteville City Hall, 210 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone 770-461-6029  Facsimile 770-460-4238  www.Fayetteville-GA.gov 

 
 

 

 

6-26-2023 
 
Eric Liebendorfer 
Crescent Communities 
3340 Peachtree Road, NE, Suite 1560 
Atlanta, GA 30326 
 
 
Re: Water and Sewer availability 
 
 
The property located in Land Lots 121 and 136 in the 5th District of Fayette County, in the Fayetteville City limits, 
located at parcel 05-31-16-006 as shown in the Fayette County Tax database, will be furnished with enough 
capacity for water and sewer service to provide for the needs required as requested for the proposed development. 
The owner or developer will be responsible for any additions or changes that will be made to the City’s water and 
sanitary sewer systems.  
 
The owner/developer is responsible for providing all engineering details to accomplish this tie-in to the City’s 
water and sanitary sewer system. All work done shall comply with the City’s Developmental Standards.   
 
If you have any questions feel free to call me at (770) 460-4664. 
 
Thank you, 

Chris Hindman 
Chris Hindman 
Director of Public Services 

 



UNDERGROUND
STORM

UNDERGROUND

STORM
880

880

880

880

880

880

880

880

880

890
890

890

870

870

870

880

880

880

S.R. 54

X

S.R. 54

 R/W VARIES

PROPERTY LINE

HIGHWAY 54

W
EA

TH
ER

LY
 D

R

KN
IG

H
T 

W
AY

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

XXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
XXXXX

XXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X

XX

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X

DOG PARK
60'x80'

C
LU

BH
O

U
SE

BLDG
4000

BLDG
1000

BLDG
2000

BLDG
3000

G
AR

AG
E

GARAGE

/MAINT.

DUMPSTER

MAIL

POOL

LINEAR PARK

35
' S

ET
BA

CK

35' SETBACK

40' SETBACK

G
AR

AG
E

G
AR

AG
E

BLDG
5000

GARAGE

25' HWY BUFFER

STORM
POND

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

PREPARED FOR:
00026.0000

AK AK
DATE: SCALE: 1" = 50'

kirk.spld22@gmail.com 470-971-9426

1

6

(:

LOCATION: EX2.0
CRESCENT COMMUNITIES

1

6

(:

SCALE:  1" = 50'

0 12.5 25 50 100 150

WEATHERLY DRIVE
CONCEPT PLAN

FAYETTEVILLE, GA

VICINITY MAP N.T.S.

SITE

09-18-2023











Proposed Ordinance # 0-02-24 

Subject Matter:  Future Land Use Map Amendment - Render Fayetteville 

Parcel Number:  053116006 

Date of Published Notice in Fayette County News:  02-07-24 

Date of Public Hearing Before Planning & Zoning Commission:  02-27-24 

Date of Published Notice in Fayette County News:  03-06-24 and 04-03-24 

Date of City Council Public Hearing and Adoption:  04-18-24 

 

 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 0-02-24 

 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 

 

PREAMBLE AND FINDINGS 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

 

 

The City of Fayetteville (the “City”) has received an application to amend the 

Future Land Use Map from Crescent Acquisitions, LLC for property located on Highway 

54 East between Weatherly Drive and Knight Way, Fayetteville GA (Parcel Nos. 

053116006) as described in EXHIBIT "A".  Said parcel of property is presently designated 

as Neighborhood Center on the FLU Map and the Applicant desires to change the 

designation to Mixed Residential. 

 

The City has given notice to the public of this proposed land use change as required 

by law and public hearings have been conducted as required by law.  The City complied 

with the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 36-36-4 and § 36-36-5 prior to the adoption of this 

Ordinance.   

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

 

IT IS HEREBY ADOPTED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

 The land use classification of the property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein, shall be, and is hereby established as Mixed Residential pursuant 

to the City of Fayetteville’s Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map and in 

accordance with the understandings and conditions imposed by the Mayor and City 

Council. 



 The City’s new land use classification upon the described property shall become 

immediately effective.  The City’s Future Land Use Map is hereby amended to reflect this 

change. 

 

ARTICLE II 

 

 Any ordinance or part of any ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 

ARTICLE III 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this 

ordinance for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed as a separate, distinct, and independent 

provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

 This ordinance shall become immediately effective upon its adoption, subject to the 

any conditions contained in the minutes of the City Council, which are part of this 

ordinance; any representations submitted by the applicant to the City Council, accepted by 

the City Council, and reflected in the minutes of the City Council; all of which 

representations shall be an amendment to the land use map amendment application and a 

part of this ordinance. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia do 

hereby adopt the attached City of Fayetteville 

SO RESOLVED, this  ______ Day of ____________________  2024. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, City Clerk    Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

        

______________________________

 Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 

 



 

Exhibit “A” 
Legal Description 

 

 
PARCEL NO. 053116006 

 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 121 & 136 of the 5th District of Fayette County, 

Georgia and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the existing intersection of the Northerly R/W of Ga.SR54 (R/W varies) and the Easterly 

R/W of Weatherly Drive (50’ R/W and Miter), this point being THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B). 

 

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B). 

 

Thence N 64°07’31”W a distance of 29.16’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence N 00°55’26” E a distance of 104.86’ 

to an (IPS) 1/2”rebar; Thence N 07°53’10” W a distance of 61.72’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence N 00°42’50”E 

a distance of 148.20’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to the right having a radius of 338.08’ a 

length of 202.75’ a chord bearing of N 15°54’02” E a distance of 199.73’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence N 

30°37’07” E a distance of 100.00’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to the left having a radius of 

463.57’ a length of 246.06’ a chord bearing of N 15°15’57” E a distance of 243.18’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; 

Thence N 00°28’00”E a distance of 66.15’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar on the Southerly R/W of Knight Way (50’ 

R/W); Thence S 89°55’41” E a distance of 280.79’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar Thence around a curve to the right 

having a radius of 275.33’ a length of 436.30’ a chord bearing of S 44°27’18” E a distance of 392.06’ to an 

(IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence S 01°46’37” W a distance of 107.24’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to 

the left having a radius of 530.43’ a length of 207.21’ a chord bearing of S 10°33’25” E a distance of 205.90’ 

to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence S 19°57’50”E a distance of 67.52’ to a (CMF) concrete monument found; 

Thence S 29°43’11” W a distance of 26.57’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence S 64°05’26” W a distance of 

118.86’ to a point; Thence around a curve to the right having a radius of 1,849.86’ a length of 659.71’ a chord 

bearing of S 74°18’26” W a distance of 656.22’ to a (CMF) concrete monument found, this point being THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.). 

 

Said property contains 12.27 acres. 

 

Also granted all easements recorded or unrecorded. 



Proposed Ordinance # 0-03-24 

Subject Matter:  Rezoning - Render Fayetteville 

Parcel Number:  053116006 

Date of Published Notice in Fayette County News:  02-07-24 

Date of Public Hearing Before Planning & Zoning Commission:  02-27-24 

Date of Published Notice in Fayette County News:  03-06-24 and 04-03-24 

Date of City Council Public Hearing and Adoption:  04-18-24 

 

 

 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 0-03-24 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 

 

PREAMBLE AND FINDINGS 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 

 

The City of Fayetteville (the “City”) has received an application for rezoning from 

Crescent Acquisitions, LLC for property located on Highway 54 East between Weatherly 

Drive and Knight Way, Fayetteville GA (Parcel Nos. 053116006) as described in 

EXHIBIT "A".  Said parcel of property is presently zoned NC Neighborhood Commercial 

and the Applicant desires to rezone the property to R-THC Residential Townhouse 

Condominium. 

 

The City has given notice to the public of this proposed rezoning as required by law 

and public hearings have been conducted as required by law.  The City complied with the 

requirements of O.C.G.A. § 36-36-4 and § 36-36-5 prior to the adoption of this Ordinance.   

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

 

IT IS HEREBY ADOPTED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

 The zoning classification of the property as described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and incorporated herein, shall be, and is hereby established as R-THC Residential 

Townhouse Condominium pursuant to the City of Fayetteville’s Unified Development 

Ordinance and in accordance with the understandings and conditions imposed by the 

Mayor and City Council as described in Exhibit “B”. 



 The City’s new ordinance classification upon the described property shall become 

immediately effective.  The City’s Official Zoning Map is hereby amended to reflect this 

rezoning. 

 

ARTICLE II 

 

 Any ordinance or part of any ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 

 

ARTICLE III 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this 

ordinance for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed as a separate, distinct, and independent 

provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

 This ordinance shall become immediately effective upon its adoption, subject to the 

any conditions contained in the minutes of the City Council, which are part of this 

ordinance; any representations submitted by the applicant to the City Council, accepted by 

the City Council, and reflected in the minutes of the City Council; all of which 

representations shall be an amendment to the rezoning application and a part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia do 

hereby adopt the attached City of Fayetteville 

SO RESOLVED, this  ______ Day of ____________________  2024. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, City Clerk    Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

        

______________________________

 Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 



Exhibit “A” 
Legal Description 

 

 
PARCEL NO. 053116006 

 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 121 & 136 of the 5th District of Fayette County, 

Georgia and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the existing intersection of the Northerly R/W of Ga.SR54 (R/W varies) and the Easterly 

R/W of Weatherly Drive (50’ R/W and Miter), this point being THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B). 

 

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B). 

 

Thence N 64°07’31”W a distance of 29.16’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence N 00°55’26” E a distance of 104.86’ 

to an (IPS) 1/2”rebar; Thence N 07°53’10” W a distance of 61.72’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence N 00°42’50”E 

a distance of 148.20’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to the right having a radius of 338.08’ a 

length of 202.75’ a chord bearing of N 15°54’02” E a distance of 199.73’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence N 

30°37’07” E a distance of 100.00’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to the left having a radius of 

463.57’ a length of 246.06’ a chord bearing of N 15°15’57” E a distance of 243.18’ to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; 

Thence N 00°28’00”E a distance of 66.15’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar on the Southerly R/W of Knight Way (50’ 

R/W); Thence S 89°55’41” E a distance of 280.79’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar Thence around a curve to the right 

having a radius of 275.33’ a length of 436.30’ a chord bearing of S 44°27’18” E a distance of 392.06’ to an 

(IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence S 01°46’37” W a distance of 107.24’ to a (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence around a curve to 

the left having a radius of 530.43’ a length of 207.21’ a chord bearing of S 10°33’25” E a distance of 205.90’ 

to an (IPS) 1/2” rebar; Thence S 19°57’50”E a distance of 67.52’ to a (CMF) concrete monument found; 

Thence S 29°43’11” W a distance of 26.57’ to an (IPS) ½” rebar; Thence S 64°05’26” W a distance of 

118.86’ to a point; Thence around a curve to the right having a radius of 1,849.86’ a length of 659.71’ a chord 

bearing of S 74°18’26” W a distance of 656.22’ to a (CMF) concrete monument found, this point being THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING (P.O.B.). 

 

Said property contains 12.27 acres. 

 

Also granted all easements recorded or unrecorded. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit “B” 

 
UNDERSTANDINGS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
TO:  Mayor and Council   

 

VIA:  Ray Gibson, City Manager       

 

FROM:   Mike Bush, Director of Finance and Administrative Services  

   

DATE:  10/26/232    

 

SUBJECT:   #0-8-24 Mid-year Budget Amendment for all funds, 

 

 

At the mid-point of Fiscal Year 2024, we have done an extensive look at all accounts for all 

funds to adjust the one that need adjustment.  We have prepared a power point presentation to 

provide the reason for the change to each line item. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 770-719-4169. 



Proposed Ordinance 0-8-24 
 

Subject Matter: FY 2024 Mid-year Budget Amendment 

 

Date of Public Hearing Before City Council: 04/18/24 6:00 PM 

 

Date of Notice Published in Fayette County News: 1/09/24 

 

 

 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER #0-8-24 

 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 

 

PREAMBLE AND FINDINGS 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
 

 

 An Ordinance to Provide for Adoption of a Budget Amendment Containing Estimates of 

Revenue and Expenditure Changes for The City of Fayetteville, Georgia for The Fiscal Year 

Beginning August 1, 2023 And Ending July 31, 2024. 

 

 Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia: 

 

 Section 1.  That for Revenues and Expenditures of the Government and Its Activities for 

The Fiscal Year, Beginning August 1, 2023 And Ending July 31, 2024 The Amounts in The 

Following Sections Are Hereby Amended. 

 

 Section 2.  That for Said Fiscal Year the General Fund, Capital Project Fund, Impact Fee 

Fund, Building Fund, TAD Fund, Water & Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Fund, DDA Fund, Main 

Street Fund, Veterans Memorial Fund, the SPLOST 2017 fund, the SPLOST 2023 fund, and the 

Self-Funded Insurance Plan fund is Hereby Amended as Follows: 



        
 

 

 

Section 3. This Ordinance Shall Become Effective Upon Its Passage and Adoption. 

 

All Ordinances, Or Parts of Ordinances, Inconsistent with This Ordinance Are Hereby Repealed. 

 

Approved by the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, by the following vote.  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia do hereby 

adopt the attached City of Fayetteville FY 2024 Mid-Year Budget Amendment. 

SO RESOLVED, this 18th Day of  April, 2024. 

 

     

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor    Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Sieman, Interim City Clerk    Darryl Langford, Council Member 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Nyia Glover, Council Member 

 

        ______________________________ 

        T. Joe Clark, Council Member 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Scott Stacy, Council Member 

2024 PROPOSED 2024

FUNDS ADOPTED BUDGET AMENDED

BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

100 GENERAL FUND 24,286,759 12,490,850    36,777,609 

351 CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,701,009   50,000           1,751,009   

352 IMPACT FEES 497,540       550,000         1,047,540   

353 BUILDING FUND 286,200       600,000         886,200       

355 TAD FUND 610,000       245,000         855,000       

505 W&S FUND 9,872,053   640,000         10,512,053 

560 DDA FUND 314,513       192,742         507,255       

565 MAINSTREET FUND 1,248,871   97                   1,248,968   

605 SELF FUNDED INSURANCE 1,810,055   442,000         2,252,055   

TOTALS 40,627,000 15,210,689    55,837,689 



 

Fayetteville City Hall, 210 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone 770-461-6029  Facsimile 770-460-4238  www.Fayetteville-GA.gov 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council       

 

VIA:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

 

CC:  Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk 

 

FROM:   David Rast, Director of Community and Economic Development   

   

DATE:   April 10, 2024  

 

SUBJECT:   Consider Step One Annexation Request from the Fayette County Development 

Authority for a 177.81-acre tract south of Banks Road and abutting Highway 54 

East (Parcel 0532 008). 

 

 

Request 

The Fayette County Development Authority (FCDA) desires to annex a ~177.81-acre tract of land on 

the east side of the city into the city limits.  Their application does not identify the intended zoning 

classification or the proposed use of the property. 

 

A copy of the complete application and supporting documentation is attached. 

 

Background 

Annexation requests within the city are reviewed using a two-step process.  Step One is intended to allow 

the applicant an opportunity to provide a general overview of the proposed annexation and identify how 

the request complies with the established goals of the city' s Comprehensive Plan.  Approval of a Step 

One application does not indicate City Council support of the proposed annexation; it simply allows an 

applicant to proceed with submitting their Step Two application. 

 

The request complies with the Georgia Annexation Law 100% method and the following two 

requirements: 

 

• The annexation territory must meet the definition of contiguous. 

• The annexation petition must be signed by owners of 100% of the land area. 

 

 

 

 

 



Property location 

The property is currently 

undeveloped and zoned A-R 

Agricultural Reserve. 

 

The northern property boundary 

(~1,500 LF) abuts Banks Road.  

The parcels north of Banks Road 

are zoned R-40 Low Density 

Residential and utilized for 

residential purposes. 

 

The eastern and western 

boundaries abut properties within 

unincorporated Fayette County.  

These parcels are zoned R-40 Low 

Density Residential and utilized 

for residential purposes 

 

A portion of the eastern border 

(~650 LF) abuts Highway 54 East.  

The parcels across Highway 54 

are located within unincorporated Fayette County and zoned A-R Agricultural Reserve. 

 

The southern boundary abuts land within the city and within unincorporated Fayette County.  The city 

tracts are zoned LI Light Industrial and utilized for light industrial purposes, and the parcels within 

unincorporated Fayette County are zoned M-1 Industrial (Industrial) and A-R Agricultural Reserve and 

utilized for industrial and residential purposes. 

 

Recommendation 

The city’s two-step annexation process does not allow for Staff to make a recommendation on a Step 

One annexation request.  Staff is therefore not providing a detailed analysis or a formal recommendation. 

























1 
 

To: Steve Rapson, County Manager 
 
From: Debbie Bell 
 
Date: April 17, 2024 
 
Re: Fayetteville Annexation Request for Parcel #0532 008 at Banks Road and Hwy. 

54 East  
    
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION  
 
Fayetteville has received a Step One Annexation Application of the above-referenced 
property The annexation application indicates that the total property is 177.81 acres. The 
property is currently zoned A-R, Agricultural-Residential, and the Fayette County Future Land 
Use Plan designates the area as Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 Acre). The applicant has 
not indicated what city zoning district will be requested,  nor have they indicated what Future 
Land Use will be proposed. 
 
Subject Parcel 

Location Parcel ID Acreage 
Current 
Zoning 

County Land 
Use 
Designation 

Proposed 
City Zoning 
& Land Use 

Banks 
Rd/Hwy 54 E 

0532 008 177.81 A-R  
Low-Density 
Residential 

Unknown 

 
The proposed annexation would not create an island.  The subject property has access to 
Banks Road and SR 54. The annexation application does not include a concept plan. It only 
states that there are no proposed residential housing units.  
 
The parcel is bounded by the following uses and zoning:  

Directio
n 

Acreag
e 

Zoning  Use Comprehensive Plan 

North & 
East 

63.69 R-40 Residential Low-Density Residential – 1 Unit/1 Acre 

South  
33 
20 
42 

M-1 
A-R 
City of Fvl. 

Industrial 
Residential 
Residential 

County: Industrial; Residential 
City of Fayetteville: Residential 

East 
105 
25 
1 

A-R 
A-R 
O-I 

McCurry 
Park 
Residential 
Vacant Office 

Recreation 
Low Density Residential – 1 Unit/1 Acre 
Office 

West 43 City of Fvl. Residential City of Fayetteville 



2 
 

HISTORY 
 
The property has not been the subject of a previous rezoning request or annexation 
application. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  
 
Planning and Zoning:   
 
Planning and Zoning staff cannot properly assess the potential impact of annexation 
because no proposed zoning or use is offered. Should the property be developed for 
commercial or industrial uses, these would almost certainly have a profound negative impact 
on surrounding residential properties.  Such uses would be inconsistent with the County’s 
Future Land Use Map & Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The subject property is currently zoned A-R; no proposed zoning for City of Fayetteville is 
noted in the application package. The subject property is currently designated Low Density 
Residential on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan map. Because no prospective zoning 
or use is indicated in the application, it is unknown whether the project is consistent with the 
County’s Comprehensive Plan.   
  
The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because of 
a material increase in burden upon the county.  The material increase in burden upon the 
county must be directly related to any one or more of the following: 

 
(1) The proposed change in zoning or land use; 
(2) Proposed increase in density; and 
(3) Infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use. 
 

The objection shall document the nature of the objection specifically providing evidence of 
any financial impact forming the basis of the objection.  Delivery of services may not be a 
basis for a valid objection but may be used in support of a valid objection if directly related 
to one or more of the subjects enumerated in (1), (2), and (3) above. 
 
In order for an objection to be valid, the proposed change in zoning or land use must: 
 

(1) Result in: 
(A) A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a 

change to a significantly different allowable use; or 
(B) A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or significantly 

diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project, as such term is 
defined in Code Section 48-8-110, which is furnished by the county to the area 
to be annexed; and 

(2) Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the county’s 
comprehensive land use or permitted for the property pursuant to the county's 



3 
 

zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 
 
Fire/EMS:  The issue from the Fire & Emergency Services perspective is the loss of revenue 
to the County fire services from an annexation of these properties into the City.  The EMS 
Tax District includes everything within the City of Fayetteville, so the annexation would be 
of minimal impact to our EMS revenue.    
 
Water System: Parcel 0532 008 has water availability through Fayette County Water 
System by connection(s) to a 10” water main on GA Hwy 54 E and by connection(s) to an 8” 
water main or a 24” water main on Banks Rd. Connections to existing water main(s) shall be 
at the future developer’s expense and are conditioned upon FCWS plan review and 
approval. 
 
Environmental Health:  No objections.  
 
Public Works/Engineering Comments:   
 

• A corridor study was completed for Banks Road in 2019 that identified multiple 
capacity, safety, and operational needs along the road.  These recommendations 
resulted in Fayette County seeking federal-aid for a capacity project along the corridor 
(the grant was not awarded).  Fayette County asks that development decisions be 
made aware of the study’s recommendations and that transportation improvements 
be provided, as appropriate, by the developer to mitigate impacts caused or 
worsened by the project. 

• As a condition of rezoning, Fayette County requests a dedication of right-of-way along 
Banks Road to provide 50 feet as measured from the existing road centerline.   

• During the last Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) update, there was 
discussion of extending McDonough Road across Parcel 0532008 to Banks 
Road.  Depending on the proposed development, this should be considered in 
conjunction with project. 

• The development should facilitate future path construction along its road frontages 
and/or include connection paths as part of the development.   

• Access to Banks Road (if requested) would be subject to review and permitting by 
Fayette County. 

• If a Traffic Impact Study is required for the project, Fayette County would like to be 
included in the review and approval process. 

• Without information on the proposed development, no comment can be provided on 
possible safety, operational, or congestion impacts to traffic. 

  



4 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The subject property is currently zoned  A-R in the County. Staff cannot offer an opinion on 
the impacts that development of the site may have because no prospective use or zoning is 
offered in the Step One Application Package.  
 
Fire is opposed to the annexation due to the loss of Fire Tax revenues. 
 
Public Works has concerns about the impact of any project on traffic, and whether a 
development will consider the County’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan but cannot offer 
a proper analysis without additional information regarding the intent of the annexation 
request. 
 
Environmental Management, Environmental Health and the Fayette County Water System 
have no objections to the request. 
 
Planning and Zoning staff has concerns about the impact of any future development on 
surrounding residential properties but cannot properly assess the potential impacts without 
further information.   
 
If the property is developed in a Low-Density Residential pattern consistent 
with the County’s Future Land Use Plan, the Planning staff have no objections 
to the annexation. However, should the property be developed for 
commercial or industrial uses or for high-density residential uses, these 
would almost certainly have a profound negative impact on surrounding 
residential properties. Such uses would be inconsistent with the County’s 
Future Land Use Map & Comprehensive Plan. Without knowing the intent of 
the request, staff cannot correctly assess the request. 
 



5 
 

 
 

  



6 
 

STATE LAW 
 
TITLE 36.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT   
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS ONLY   
CHAPTER 36.  ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY   
ARTICLE 7.  PROCEDURE FOR RESOLVING ANNEXATION DISPUTES  
 
36-36-113. Objection to annexation; grounds and procedures 
 

 (a) The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation 
because of a material increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one 
or more of the following: 
 
(1) The proposed change in zoning or land use; 

 
(2) Proposed increase in density; and 

 
(3) Infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use. 
 

(b) Delivery of services may not be a basis for a valid objection but may be used in 
support of a valid objection if directly related to one or more of the subjects 
enumerated in paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of subsection (a) of this Code section. 

 
(c)  The objection provided for in subsection (a) of this Code section shall document the 

nature of the objection specifically providing evidence of any financial impact forming 
the basis of the objection and shall be delivered to the municipal governing authority 
by certified mail or statutory overnight delivery to be received not later than the end 
of the thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice provided for in Code 
Section 36-36-111. 

 
(d) In order for an objection pursuant to this Code section to be valid, the proposed 

change in zoning or land use must: 
 

(1) Result in: 
 
(A) A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the 

property or a change to a significantly different allowable use; or 
    
    (B) A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or 

significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay 
project, as such term is defined in Code Section 48-8-110, which is 
furnished by the county to the area to be annexed; and 

 
(2) Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the 

county’s comprehensive land use or permitted for the property pursuant to 



7 
 

the county's zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 
 

36-36-114. Arbitration panel; composition and membership  
 
   (a)  Not later than the fifteenth calendar day following the date the municipal corporation 

received the first objection provided for in Code Section 36-36-113, an arbitration 
panel shall be appointed as provided in this Code section. 
 

(b)  The arbitration panel shall be composed of five members to be selected as provided 
in this subsection. The Department of Community Affairs shall develop three pools of 
arbitrators, one pool which consists of persons who are currently or within the 
previous six years have been municipal elected officials, one pool which consists of 
persons who are currently or within the previous six years have been county elected 
officials, and one pool which consists of persons with a master's degree or higher in 
public administration or planning and who are currently employed by an institution 
of higher learning in this state, other than the Carl Vinson Institute of Government. 
The pool shall be sufficiently large to ensure as nearly as practicable that no person 
shall be required to serve on more than two panels in any one calendar year and 
serve on no more than one panel in any given county in any one calendar year. The 
department is authorized to coordinate with the Georgia Municipal Association, the 
Association County Commissioners of Georgia, the Council of Local Governments, 
and similar organizations in developing and maintaining such pools. 
 

(c)  Upon receiving notice of a disputed annexation, the department shall choose at 
random four names from the pool of municipal officials, four names from the pool of 
county officials, and three names from the pool of academics; provided, however, 
that none of such selections shall include a person who is a resident of the county 
which has interposed the objection or any municipal corporation located wholly or 
partially in such county. The municipal corporation shall be permitted to strike or 
excuse two of the names chosen from the county officials pool; the county shall be 
permitted to strike or excuse two of the names chosen from the municipal officials 
pool; and the county and municipal corporation shall each be permitted to strike or 
excuse one of the names chosen from the academic pool. 
 

(d)  Prior to being eligible to serve on any of the three pools, persons interested in serving 
on such panels shall receive joint training in alternative dispute resolution together 
with zoning and land use training, which may be designed and overseen by the Carl 
Vinson Institute of Government in conjunction with the Association County 
Commissioners of Georgia and the Georgia Municipal Association, provided such 
training is available. 
 

(e)  At the time any person is selected to serve on a panel for any particular annexation 
dispute, he or she shall sign the following oath: "I do solemnly swear or affirm that I 
will faithfully perform my duties as an arbitrator in a fair and impartial manner 
without favor or affection to any party, and that I have not and will not have any ex 



8 
 

parte communication regarding the facts and circumstances of the matters to be 
determined, other than communications with my fellow arbitrators, and will only 
consider, in making my determination, those matters which may lawfully come before 
me." 

 
36-36-115. Meetings of arbitration panel; duties; findings and recommendations; 

compensation  
 

(a)  (1) The arbitration panel appointed pursuant to Code Section 36-36-114 shall meet as 
soon after appointment as practicable and shall receive evidence and argument from 
the municipal corporation, the county, and the applicant or property owner and shall 
by majority vote render a decision which shall be binding on all parties to the dispute 
as provided for in this article not later than the sixtieth day following such 
appointment. The meetings of the panel in which evidence is submitted or arguments 
of the parties are made shall be open to the public pursuant to Chapter 14 of Title 50. 
The panel shall first determine the validity of the grounds for objection as specified 
in the objection. If an objection involves the financial impact on the county as a result 
of a change in zoning or land use or the provision of maintenance of infrastructure, 
the panel shall quantify such impact in terms of cost. As to any objection which the 
panel has determined to be valid, the panel, in its findings, may establish reasonable 
zoning, land use, or density conditions applicable to the annexation and propose any 
reasonable mitigating measures as to an objection pertaining to infrastructure 
demands. 
 
(2) In arriving at its determination, the panel shall consider: 
 
      (A) The existing comprehensive land use plans of both the county and city; 
 
      (B) The existing land use patterns in the area of the subject property; 
 
      (C) The existing zoning patterns in the area of the subject property; 
 
      (D) Each jurisdiction's provision of infrastructure to the area of the subject 

property; 
 
      (E) Whether the county has approved similar changes in intensity or allowable 

uses on similar developments in other unincorporated areas of the county; 
 
      (F) Whether the county has approved similar developments in other 

unincorporated areas of the county which have a similar impact on 
infrastructure as complained of by the county in its objection; and 

 
      (G) Whether the infrastructure or capital outlay project which is claimed adversely 

impacted by the county in its objection was funded by a county-wide tax. 
 



9 
 

(3) The county shall provide supporting evidence that its objection is consistent with 
its land use plan and the pattern of existing land uses and zonings in the area of 
the subject property. 

 
(4) The county shall bear at least 75 percent of the cost of the arbitration. The panel 

shall apportion the remaining 25 percent of the cost of the arbitration equitably 
between the city and the county as the facts of the appeal warrant; provided, 
however, that if the panel determines that any party has advanced a position that 
is substantially frivolous, the costs shall be borne by the party that has advanced 
such position. 

 
(5) The reasonable costs of participation in the arbitration process of the property 

owner or owners whose property is at issue shall be borne by the county and the 
city in the same proportion as costs are apportioned under paragraph (4) of this 
subsection. 

 
(6) The panel shall deliver its findings and recommendations to the parties by certified 

mail or statutory overnight delivery. 
 

(b)  If the decision of the panel contains zoning, land use, or density conditions, the 
findings and recommendations of the panel shall be recorded in the deed records of 
the county with a caption describing the name of the current owner of the property, 
recording reference of the current owner's acquisition deed and a general description 
of the property, and plainly showing the expiration date of any restrictions or 
conditions. 
 

(c)  The arbitration panel shall be dissolved on the tenth day after it renders its findings 
and recommendations but may be reconvened as provided in Code Section 36-36-
116. 
 

(d)  The members of the arbitration panel shall receive the same per diem, expenses, and 
allowances for their service on the committee as is authorized by law for members of 
interim legislative study committees. 
 

(e)  If the panel so agrees, any one or more additional annexation disputes which may 
arise between the parties prior to the panel's initial meeting may be consolidated for 
the purpose of judicial economy if there are similar issues of location or similar 
objections raised to such other annexations or the property to be annexed in such 
other annexations is within 2,500 feet of the subject property. 

 
36-36-116. Appeal  
 

The municipal or county governing authority or an applicant for annexation may 
appeal the decision of the arbitration panel by filing an action in the superior court of 
the county within ten calendar days from receipt of the panel's findings and 



10 
 

recommendations. The sole grounds for appeal shall be to correct errors of fact or of 
law, the bias or misconduct of an arbitrator, or the panel's abuse of discretion. The 
superior court shall schedule an expedited appeal and shall render a decision within 
20 days from the date of filing. If the court finds that an error of fact or law has been 
made, that an arbitrator was biased or engaged in misconduct, or that the panel has 
abused its discretion, the court shall issue such orders governing the proposed 
annexation as the circumstances may require, including remand to the panel. Any 
unappealed order shall be binding upon the parties. The appeal shall be assigned to 
a judge who is not a judge in the circuit in which the county is located. 
 

36-36-117. Annexation after conclusion of procedures; remedies for violations of 
conditions  

 
If the annexation is completed after final resolution of any objection, whether by 
agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or court order as a result of an appeal, the 
municipal corporation shall not change the zoning, land use, or density of the 
annexed property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service 
delivery agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and 
county and all required parties. Following the conclusion of the dispute resolution 
process outlined in this article, the municipal corporation and an applicant for 
annexation may either accept the recommendations of the arbitration panel and 
proceed with the remaining annexation process or abandon the annexation 
proceeding. A violation of the conditions set forth in this Code section may be 
enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such conditions have expired as provided 
in this Code section. 
 

36-36-118. Abandonment of proposed annexation; remedies for violations of 
conditions  

 
If at any time during the proceedings the municipal corporation or applicant 
abandons the proposed annexation, the county shall not change the zoning, land use, 
or density affecting the property for a period of one year unless such change is made 
in the service delivery agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected 
city and county and all required parties. A violation of the conditions set forth in this 
Code section may be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such period has 
expired. After final resolution of any objection, whether by agreement of the parties, 
act of the panel, or any appeal from the panel's decision, the terms of such decision 
shall remain valid for the one-year period and such annexation may proceed at any 
time during the one year without any further action or without any further right of 
objection by the county. 



 

Fayetteville City Hall, 210 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone 770-461-6029  Facsimile 770-460-4238  www.Fayetteville-GA.gov 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council       

 

VIA:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

 

CC:  Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk 

 

FROM:   David Rast, Director of Community and Economic Development   

   

DATE:   April 10, 2024  

 

SUBJECT:   Consider Resolution R-18-24 to adopt the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 

2024 Annual Update for Fiscal Year 2023. 

 

 

Background 

The 2024 Annual Update to the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) and the associated Impact Fee 

Financial Report were submitted to and reviewed by the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and the 

Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) in accordance with the “Development Impact Fee 

Compliance Requirements” and the “Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for Local 

Comprehensive Planning” adopted by the Board of Community Affairs pursuant to the Georgia Planning 

Act of 1989. 

 

We were notified via e-mail that DCA completed their review on April 3rd and the regional review and 

comment period will close on April 16th, at which time we can officially adopt the CIE Update.  Once 

the CIE Update is adopted and forwarded to ARC, they will notify DCA and DCA will notify the city 

that our status as a Qualified Local Government (QLG) has been extended.  

 

Recommendation 

That City Council adopt Resolution R-18-24 and authorize Staff to forward the signed Resolution and 

the approved CIE Update to ARC for their records. 



RESOLUTION 

 

R-18-24 

 

ADOPTION OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT (CIE) 2024 

ANNUAL UPDATE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville has adopted a Capital Improvements Element as an 

amendment to the City of Fayetteville Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville has prepared its Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 

2024 Annual Update; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2024 Annual Update was prepared, 

submitted and reviewed in accordance with the “Development Impact Fee Compliance 

Requirements” and the “Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive 

Planning” adopted by the Board of Community Affairs pursuant to the Georgia Planning Act of 

1989; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Georgia Department of 

Community Affairs have reviewed the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2024 Annual Update 

and have found it to be consistent with all State and Regional requirements. 

 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, the Mayor and City Council of Fayetteville does 

hereby adopt the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) 2024 Annual Update in accordance with 

the Development Impact Fee Compliance Requirements. 

 

SO RESOLVED, this _______ day of ________________, 2024. 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 



 

Fayetteville City Hall, 210 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone 770-461-6029  Facsimile 770-460-4238  www.Fayetteville-GA.gov 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council       

 

VIA:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

 

CC:  Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk 

 

FROM:   David Rast, Director of Community and Economic Development   

   

DATE:   April 10, 2024  

 

SUBJECT:   Consider Resolution R-19-24 to adopt Local Amendments to the Georgia State 

Minimum Standard Plumbing Code. 

 

 

Background 

The Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District (“Metro Water District”) recently released their 

Water Resources Management Plan (“Plan”) which presents an integrated approach to water resource 

management for the 15-county Metro Water District. The Plan recommends that each jurisdiction within 

the 15-county Metro Water District adopt local amendments to the Georgia State Minimum Standard 

Plumbing Code.  These amendments were presented to City Council on September 19, 2023 (R-41-23) 

 

 

 as identified in the attached Resolution R-41-23.  In accordance with O.C.G.A. Section 8-2-25(c), we 

must first submit the proposed local amendments to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

(DCA) for review and approval no less than sixty (60) days prior to adoption.  Should they be approved, 

the Water Efficiency Code Requirements would become effective January 1, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That City Council adopt Resolution R-18-24 and authorize Staff to forward the signed Resolution and 

the approved CIE Update to ARC for their records. 



RESOLUTION 

 

R-19-24 

 

ADOPTION OF LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO PLUMBING CODE FOR 

WATER EFFICIENCY 
 

 

WHEREAS, the current minimum water efficiency requirements for buildings in the City 

of Fayetteville’s jurisdiction is the Georgia State Minimum Standard Plumbing Code (“Georgia 

Plumbing Code”) as approved and adopted by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

(“DCA”) from time to time; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville, like all local governments in the State of Georgia, is 

authorized under O.C.G.A. § 8-2-25(c) to adopt local requirements that are more stringent than the 

Georgia Plumbing Code based on local climatic, geologic, topographic, or public safety factors; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville has followed the required procedures in O.C.G.A. § 

8-2-25(c) for local adoption of the Local Amendments to Plumbing Code for water efficiency, and 

DCA has recommended that they be adopted.  

 

WHEREAS, the long-term availability, reliability, and resiliency of water supplies is a 

critical need of the City of Fayetteville and water efficiency is essential to meeting this need;  

 

WHERAS, the City of Fayetteville is adopting the Local Amendments to Plumbing Code 

to meet this critical need and to comply the requirements of Metropolitan North Georgia Water 

Planning District’s 2022 Water Resources Plan in the WSWC-8 Action Item on Metro Water 

District – Water Efficiency Code Requirements.  

 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, the Mayor and City Council of Fayetteville does 

hereby adopt the local amendments to the Plumbing Code for Water Efficiency as shown in Exhibit 

“A” and in accordance with the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District’s 2022 Water 

Resources Plan in the WSWC-8 Action Item on Metro Water District – Water Efficiency Code 

Requirements based on the following: 

 

1. The governing body of the City of Fayetteville finds that, based on local climatic, 

geographic, topographic, and public safety factors, it is justified in adopting the water 

efficiency requirements in the Local Amendments to Plumbing Code that are more 

stringent that the Georgia Plumbing Code; 

 

2. The City of Fayetteville has followed the required procedures in O.C.G.A. § 8-2-25(c). 

 

3. The City of Fayetteville hereby adopts the Local Amendments to Plumbing Code, which 

will be effective immediately upon adoption of this Resolution. 

 



SO RESOLVED, this _______ day of ________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 

  



Attachment “A” 

 

Local Amendment to Georgia State Minimum Plumbing Code as it relates to Water 

Efficiency 

 

REDLINES AS PROPOSED 

 

Amendment to Section 501.3.A.4. and Section 501.10.A.5. of the Unified Development Ordinance 

(UDO). Effective January 1, 2024, the Georgia State Minimum Standard Plumbing Code has been 

amended by the City of Fayetteville as follows:  

 

Chapter 2, Section 202 General Definitions. Add in alphabetical order and revise, as applicable, 

the following definitions:  

 

KITCHEN FAUCET OR KITCHEN FAUCET REPLACEMENT AERATOR. A kitchen 

faucet or kitchen faucet replacement aerator that allows a flow of no more than 1.82.0 gallons of 

water per minute at a pressure of 60 pounds per square inch and conforms to the applicable 

requirements in ASME A112.18.1/CSA B125.1. 

 

LAVATORY FAUCET OR LAVATORY FAUCET REPLACEMENT AERATOR. A 

lavatory faucet or lavatory faucet replacement aerator that allows a flow of no more than 1.25 

gallons per minute at a pressure of 60 pounds per square inch and is listed to the WaterSense High 

Efficiency Lavatory Faucet Specification.  

 

LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION. 

 

Flow sensor. An inline device in a landscape irrigation system that produces a repeatable 

signal proportional to flow rate. 

 

Lawn or Landscape Irrigation system. An assembly of component parts that is 

permanently installed for the controlled distribution of water to irrigate landscapes such as 

ground cover, trees, shrubs, and other plants. Lawn and Landscape Irrigation System refer 

to the same system.  

 

Master shut-off valve. An automatic valve such as a gate valve, ball valve, or butterfly 

valve) installed as part of the landscape irrigation system capable of being automatically 

closed by the WaterSense controller. When this valve is closed water will not be supplied 

to the landscape irrigation system. 

 

Pressure regulating device. A device designed to maintain pressure within the landscape 

irrigation system at the manufacturer’s recommended operating pressure and that protects 

against sudden spikes or drops from the water source. 

 

Rain sensor shut-off. An electric device that detects and measures rainfall amounts and 

overrides the cycle of a landscape irrigation system so as to turn off such system when a 

predetermined amount of rain has fallen. 



 

WaterSense irrigation controller. Is a weather-based or soil moisture-based irrigation 

controllers labeled under the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s WaterSense 

program, which includes standalone controllers, add-on devices, and plug-in devices that 

use current weather data as a basis for scheduling irrigation.  

 

WaterSense spray sprinkler bodies. A sprinkler body with integral pressure regulation, 

generating optimal water spray and coverage labeled under the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency’s WaterSense program.  

 

SHOWER HEAD. A shower head that allows a flow of no more than the average of 2.05 

gallons of water per minute at 860 pounds per square inch of pressure,  and is listed in the 

WaterSense Specification for Showerheads, and meets the US Department Definition of 

Energy definition of showerhead. 

 

Chapter 6, Section 604.4 Maximum Flow and Water Consumption.  

Revise Section 604.4 to read as follows:  

 

Consistent with the general approach taken in Georgia, these Maximum Flow and Water 

Consumption requirements and related definitions in Section 604.4 of the plumbing code shall 

apply to all plumbing systems, including those in one- and two-family dwellings. The maximum 

water consumption flow rates and quantities for all plumbing fixtures and fixture fittings shall be 

in accordance with Table 604.4. 

 

Exceptions: 

1. Blowout design water closets having a water consumption not greater than 31/2 gallons (13 

L) per flushing cycle. 

2. Vegetable sprays. 

3. Clinical sinks having a water consumption not greater than 41/2 gallons (17 L) per flushing 

cycle. 

4. Laundry tray sinks and , Sservice sinks. 

5. Emergency showers and eye wash stations. 

 
TABLE 604.4  

MAXIMUM FLOW RATES AND CONSUMPTION FOR  

PLUMBING FIXTURES AND FIXTURE FITTINGS 

 

PLUMBING FIXTURE  

OR FIXTURE FITTING 

MAXIMUM FLOW RATE  

OR QUANTITYb 

Lavatory faucet and replacement 

aerators, private 

WaterSense Labeled & 

1.25 gpm at 60 psif 

Lavatory faucet, public (metering) 0.25 gallon per metering cycle 

Lavatory, public  

(other than metering) 
0.5 gpm at 60 psi 



Showerheada 

WaterSense Labeled & 

2.52.0 gpm at 8060 psif 

 

Kitchen Sink faucet and 

replacement aerators 
2.01.8 gpm at 60 psif, g 

Urinal 0.5 gallon per flushing cyclef 

Water closet 1.28 gallons per flushing cyclec, d, e, f 

 
For SI: 1 gallon = 3.785 L, 1 gallon per minute = 3.785 L/m, 1 pound per square inch = 6.895 kPa. 

 

a. A hand-held shower spray is a shower head. As point of clarification, multiple shower 

heads may be installed in a single shower enclosure so long as each shower head 

individually meets the maximum flow rate, the WaterSense requirements, and the US 

Department of Energy definition of showerhead. However, multiple shower heads are not 

recommended for water efficiency purposes.  

 

b. Consumption tolerances shall be determined from referenced standards. 

 

c. For flushometer valves and flushometer tanks, the average flush volume shall not exceed 

1.28 gallons. 

 

d. For single flush water closets, including gravity, pressure assisted and electro-hydraulic 

tank types, the average flush volume shall not exceed 1.28 gallons. 

 

e. For dual flush water closets, the average flush volume of two reduced flushes and one full 

flush shall not exceed 1.28 gallons. 

 

f. See 2014 GA Amendment to Section 301.1.2 'Waiver from requirements of high efficiency 

plumbing fixtures’. 

 

Kitchen faucets are permitted to temporarily increase the flow above the maximum rate, but not to 

exceed 2.2 gpm (8.3 L/m) at 60 psi (414 kPa) and must revert to a maximum flow rate of 1.8 gpm 

(6.8 L/m) at 60 psi (414 kPa) upon valve closure.  

 

604.4.1 Clothes Washers. Residential clothes washers shall be in accordance with the Energy Star 

program requirements.  

 

604.4.2 Cooling Tower Water Efficiency. 

 

604.4.2.1 Once-Through Cooling. Once-through cooling using potable water is prohibited. 

 

604.4.2.2 Cooling Towers and Evaporative Coolers. Cooling towers and evaporative coolers 

shall be equipped with makeup water and blow down meters, conductivity controllers and 

overflow alarms. Cooling towers shall be equipped with efficiency drift eliminators that achieve 



drift reduction to 0.002 percent of the circulated water volume for counterflow towers and 0.005 

percent for crossflow towers. 

 

604.4.2.3 Cooling Tower Makeup Water. Water used for air conditioning, cooling towers shall 

not be discharged where the hardness of the basin water is less than 1500 mg/L. Exception: Where 

any of the following conditions of the basin water are present: total suspended solids exceed 25 

ppm, CaCO3 exceeds 600 ppm, chlorides exceed 250 ppm, sulfates exceed 250 ppm, or silica 

exceeds 150 ppm. 

  

604.4.3 Landscape Irrigation System Efficiency Requirements. The requirements in Section 

604.4.3 apply to all new landscape irrigation systems connected to the public water system except 

those (a) used for agricultural operations as defined in the Official Code of Georgia Section 1-3-

3, (b) used for golf courses, and (c) dependent upon a nonpublic water source. Nothing in this 

Code or this Section 604.4.3 is intended to require that landscape irrigation systems must be 

installed at all premises. The landscape irrigation efficiency requirements in this Section 604.4.3 

apply only when someone voluntarily chooses, or is otherwise required by some requirement 

beyond this Code, to install a landscape irrigation system on premises.  

 

604.4.3.1 Avoiding Water Waste Through Design. All new landscape irrigation systems shall 

adhere to the following design standards:  

1. Pop-up type sprinkler heads shall pop-up to a height above vegetation level of not less than 

four (4) inches above the soil level when emitting water.  

2. Pop-up spray heads or rotary sprinkler heads must direct flow away from any adjacent 

surfaces and must not be installed closer than four inches from impervious surfaces.  

3. Areas less than ten (10) feet in width in any direction shall be irrigated with subsurface 

irrigation or by other means that produces no overspray or runoff. 

4. Narrow or irregular shaped landscaped areas, less than four (4) feet in any direction across 

opposing boundaries shall not be irrigated by any irrigation emission device except sub-

surface or low flow emitters with flow rates not to exceed 6.3 gallons per hour. 

 

604.4.3.2 Landscape Irrigation System Required Components.  

All new landscape irrigation systems shall include the following components: 

1. A rain sensor shut-off installed in an area that is unobstructed by trees, roof over hangs, or 

anything else that might block rain from triggering the rain sensor shutoff. 

1.2.A master shut-off valve for each controller installed as close as possible to the point of 

connection of the water but downstream of the backflow prevention assembly. 

3. Pressure-regulating devices such as valve pressure regulators, sprinkler head pressure 

regulators, inline pressure regulators, WaterSense spray sprinkler bodies, or other devices 

shall be installed as needed to achieve the manufacturer’s recommended pressure range at 

the emission devices for optimal performance. 

4. Except for landscape irrigation systems serving a single-family home, all other systems 

must also include:  



a. a WaterSense irrigation controller; and 

b. at least one flow sensor, which must be installed at or near the supply point of the 

landscape irrigation system and shall interface with the control system, that when 

connected to the WaterSense controller will detect and report high flow conditions to 

such controller and automatically shut master valves. The flow sensor serves to aid in 

detecting leaks or abnormal flow conditions by suspending irrigation. High flow 

conditions should be consistent with manufacturers’ recommendations and 

specifications. 

 

Chapter 13 NONPOTABLE WATER SYSTEMS, Section 1304 Reclaimed Water Systems.  

Revise Section 1304.3.2 to read as follows:  

 

1304.3.2 Connections to water supply. Reclaimed water provided from a reclaimed wastewater 

treatment systemfacility permitted by the Environmental Protection Division may be used to 

supply water closets, urinals, trap primers for floor drains and floor sinks, water features and other 

uses approved by the Authority Having Jurisdiction, in motels, hotels, apartment and condominium 

buildings, and commercial, industrial, and institutional buildings, where the individual guest or 

occupant does not have access to plumbing. Also, other systems that may use a lesser quality of 

water than potable water such as water chillers, carwashes or an industrial process may be supplied 

with reclaimed water provided from a reclaimed wastewater treatment facility permitted by the 

Environmental Protection Division. The use of reclaimed water sourced from any new private 

reclaimed wastewater treatment system for outdoor irrigation shall be limited to golf courses and 

agriculture operations as defined in the Official Code of Georgia Section 1-3-3, and such reclaimed 

water shall not be approved for use for irrigating any other outdoor landscape such as ground 

cover, tree, shrubs, or other plants. These limitations do not apply to reclaimed water sourced from 

existing private reclaimed water systems or from existing or new, governmentally-owned 

reclaimed wastewater treatment systems.  

 

Appendix E, Section E101.1.2.  

Revise Section E.101.1.2 to read as follows:  

 

Because of the variable conditions encountered in hydraulic design, it is impractical to specify 

definite and detailed rules for sizing of the water piping system. Accordingly, other sizing or design 

methods conforming to good engineering practice standards are acceptable alternatives to those 

presented herein. Without limiting the foregoing, such acceptable design methods may include for 

multi-family buildings the Peak Water Demand Calculator from the IAPMO/ANSI 2020 Water 

Efficiency and Sanitation Standard for the Built Environment, which accounts for the demands of 

water-conserving plumbing fixtures, fixture fittings, and appliances. If future versions of the Peak 

Water Demand Calculator including other building types, such as commercial, such updated 

version shall be an acceptable design method.  

 



 
TO:  Mayor and City Council   

 

FROM:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

   

DATE:    April 10, 2024 

 

SUBJECT:   R-20-24 - Severance Policy 

 

 

 

Section 3.08(d) of the Charter of the City of Fayetteville grants to the City Manager the authority 

to appoint, suspend, or remove all City employees, except those appointed by the Mayor and 

Council, in accordance with such general personnel rules, regulations, policies, or ordinances as 

are, from time to time, adopted by the Mayor and Council. 

 

The City of Fayetteville is looking to adopt the attached Severance Policy that sets forth the 

standards and procedures of authorizing a severance package to city employees.  



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE  

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

RESOLUTION  R-20-24 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA APPROVING A 

SEVERANCE POLICY TO BE ADMINISTERED BY THE CITY MANAGER.  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 3.08(d) of the Charter of the City of Fayetteville grants to the City 

Manager the authority to appoint, suspend, or remove all City employees, except those appointed 

by the Mayor and Council, in accordance with such general personnel rules, regulations, policies, 

or ordinances as are, from time to time, adopted by the Mayor and Council; and,  

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville sets high standards of performance, ethics, and 

professionalism for its employees; and,  

WHEREAS, from time to time, as a result of a failure to satisfy such high standards, the 

City Manager is obligated to remove employees from employment at the City of Fayetteville; and, 

WHEREAS, under certain circumstances, the City Manager may determine that it is 

reasonable and appropriate to offer a severance package to employees that are removed from their 

position of employment with the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville have and do consider it to 

be in the best interests of the City and its residents, employees, and taxpayers to establish a policy 

authorizing the extension of severance benefits to employees who are removed from their position 

at the City of Fayetteville. 

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Fayetteville, as follows: 

1. Authorization of Severance Package.  The City Manager is authorized, in his or her 

discretion, to offer and provide to employees removed from employment by the City 

of Fayetteville a reasonable severance package, without further authorization or 

approval of the Mayor and Council, subject to the following limitations and conditions: 

a. No severance package may offer to any employee a severance greater than one 

(1) month’s salary, compensation, and benefits. This shall include any direct 

salaries, compensations, or benefits received by the employee as a direct result 

of his or her employment with the City.  



b. No severance package may be offered to any employee who is terminated from 

employment as a result of any alleged criminal activity, including but not 

limited to, criminal activity directly or indirectly related to the employee’s 

employment with the City of Fayetteville.  

c. No severance package may be granted or denied based upon any employee’s 

national origin, race, sex, gender, age, religion, sexual orientation, or genetic 

information. 

d. No severance package may be given in the absence of a properly executed 

Severance Agreement. Said Severance Agreement must be approved in form 

and substance by the City Manager and City Attorney, and executed by the 

employee where indicated. The Severance Agreement must clearly spell out the 

terms and conditions of the the severance package. 

SO RESOLVED, this __ Day of April, 2024. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 

      

 

    



 
TO:  Mayor and Council   

 

VIA:  Ray Gibson, City Manager       

 

FROM:   Mike Bush, Director of Finance and Administrative Services  

   

DATE:  4/10/2024 

 

SUBJECT:   #0-9-24 Changes to the limits for purchase approvals in the Purchasing 

Manual 

 

 

After discussing a few changes in the purchasing manual, which is located in the city ordinances, 

it was determined that we do not have to advertise the changes, nor do we have to hold a special 

public hearing for these changes. 

 

We were advised that the changes can be done through consent agenda. 

 

The changes are with our approval limits for certain purchases.  The following are the current 

guidelines. 

 

1. Items $1,000 and below require Department Head Approval. 

2. Items $1001 - $5,000 and budgeted require three written quotes approved by Department 

Head and Finance. 

3. Items 5,001 - $25,000 and budgeted require three written quotes approved by Department 

Head, Finance, and the City Manager 

4. Items above $25,001 require formal bids. 

 

The Staff is asking to change the current limits to the following: 

 

1. Items $2,500 and below require Department Head Approval only. 

2. Items $2,501 - $7,500 and budgeted require three written quotes and approval from the 

Department Head and Finance. 

3. Items $7,501 - $49,999 and budgeted require three written quotes and approval from the 

Department Head, Finance, and the City Manager. 

4. Items above $50,000 but less than $100,000 and budgeted require 3 written quotes and 

approval from the Department Head, Finance, City Manager, and City Council. 

5. Over $100,000 requires formal bids. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 770-719-4169. 



ORDINANCE #0-09-24 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 (ADMINISTRATION), ARTICLE 

VI (PURCHASING MANUAL), DIVISION 2 (PURCHASING), SECTION 2-314 

(PURCHASING PROCEDURES) OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE TO AMEND THE PURCHASING PROCEDURES; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council are the governing body of the City of 

Fayetteville; and, 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council are authorized to amend the policies and 

procedures of the City at this discretion; and,  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it necessary to amended the 

purchasing procedures of the City of Fayetteville. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Fayetteville hereby ordains: 

Section One.  Purchasing Procedures.  Section 2-314 (Purchasing Procedures) of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Fayetteville is hereby amended by striking Section 2-

314 and its entirety and replacing it with the following: 

(a) The purchasing procedures to be followed by the city based on the dollar amount 

of the purchase are as follows and are on a per item basis: 

(1) Up to $2,500.00 and budgeted—Direct purchase by the department head. 

(2) $2,500.01 up to $7,500.00 and budgeted—Minimum of three written quotations 

taken by department head and submitted to purchasing agent. Results of 

quotations and award shall be recorded and filed. 

(3) $7,500.01 up to $49,999.99 and budgeted—Minimum of three written 

quotations taken by department head and submitted to purchasing agent. The 

purchasing agent submits copies to the city manager. Results of quotations and 

award shall be recorded and filed. 

(4) Above $50,000.00 and budgeted—Requires solicitation of advertised formal 

sealed bids by the purchasing agent. The purchasing agent and city manager 

make recommendation to governing body and they award the bid. Results of 

bids and award shall be recorded and filed. All purchases must be approved by 

the Department Head, Director of Finance, City Manager and the City Council.  

(5) Public works construction projects $100,000.00 or more and budgeted—

Requires public advertisement, sealed competitive bids by purchasing 

department. Purchasing agent and city manager make recommendation to 



governing body and they award bid. Results of bids and award to be recorded 

and filed. 

(6) Fayette County collaborative buying list or state contract (budgeted items 

including vehicles)—Direct purchase by department heads through purchasing 

agent with city manager and financial director approval. 

(7) Professional services— 

a. The governing body may appoint charter positions based upon 

qualifications and experience. These charter positions shall include, 

attorney, solicitor, judge, and judge pro tem. 

b. The city may contract with vendors for professional services based upon 

qualifications, experience and costs, if applicable, of the respective 

vendors. These professional services shall include, but not limited to, 

auditors, engineers, architects, banks, and psychologists. Professional 

services shall require solicitation of proposals or bids, as necessary, by 

the purchasing agent. The purchasing agent and city manager make 

recommendation to governing body and they award the bid. Results of 

bids and award shall be recorded and filed. 

c. All contracts shall comply with sections 2-350 through 2-356 of this 

chapter. 

(8) Compliance with federal requirements—Where a procurement involves the 

expenditure of federal assistance or contract funds, the purchasing agent shall 

comply with such federal laws and authorized regulations which are 

mandatorily applicable and which are not presently reflected in this chapter. 

(9) Sole source procurement—A contract may be awarded without competition 

when the purchasing agent determines in writing, after conducting a good faith 

review of available sources, that there is only one source for the required supply, 

service, or construction item. The purchasing agent shall conduct negotiations, 

as appropriate, as to price, delivery, and terms. A record of sole source 

procurements shall be maintained as a public record and shall list each 

contractor's name, the amount and type of each contract, a listing of the items(s) 

procured under each contract, and the identification number of each contract 

file. 

(b) Bond and insurance requirements. 

(1) Public road projects contracts over $5,000.00 require performance bond and 

payment bond as well as public liability and property damage insurance bonds 

or policies, and bonds to maintain in good condition; such completed 

construction for a period of not less than five years, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 32-

4-119. The amount of insurance depends on the size of the project. 

(2) Public works contracts over $40,000.00 must provide a bid bond, performance 

bond, and payment bond in accordance with O.C.G.A. tit. 36, ch. 91. 



(3) Any contractor entering a contract with the city must carry a worker's 

compensation policy at the minimum statutory limit, unless he is exempt under 

O.C.G.A. § 34-9-1 et seq. 

(4) Licensed professionals contracting with the city for services in the amount of 

$40,000.00 or more must provide professional liability coverage of 

$1,000,000.00. 

Section Two. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances and parts of ordinances 

in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section Three. Effective Date. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of 

adoption unless otherwise stated herein.  

ORDAINED, this 18th day of April, 2024. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 

      

 

 



 
TO:  Mayor and City Council   

 

FROM:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

   

DATE:    April 10, 2024 

 

SUBJECT:   #0-10-24 – Public Hearings Ordinance  

 

 

An ordinance amending Article II (City Government), Section 2.06 (Regular and Special 

Meetings of Mayor and Council) of the Charter of the City of Fayetteville, to establish the time 

for public participation at Regular Meeting of the City Council, to limit topics for discussion 

during public participation to matters appearing on the agenda, and for other purposes.  

 

   



ORDINANCE #0-10-24 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE II (CITY GOVERNMENT), SECTION 

2.06 (REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL) OF 

THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE TO ESTABLISH THE 

TIME FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL, TO LIMIT TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION DURING PUBLIC 

PARTICIPATION TO MATTERS APPEARING ON THE AGENDA; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES.  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council conduct regular public meetings on the 

third Thursday of each month pursuant to Section 2.06 of the City Charter for the City of 

Fayetteville (the “Regular Meetings”);  

WHEREAS, in order to provide for more public participation during such Regular 

Meetings and in order to ensure efficient and productive meetings, the Mayor and Council 

have determined that it is in the best interest of the City, its residents, and taxpayers to 

establish guidelines for public participation in Regular Meetings of the Mayor and Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Fayetteville hereby ordains: 

Section One.  Public Participation.  Section 2.06 of the Charter of the City of Fayetteville 

be amended by adding a new Section 2.06 (c) as follows: 

“(c) Public participation at Regular Meetings of the City Council shall be 

permitted in accordance with the provisions of this section.  

(1)  Public comments.  

a.   At each Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council (which meetings 

are presently conducted on the third Thursday of each month), a time for 

public comment (the "public comment portion"), not to exceed thirty (30) 

minutes, shall be made available during which time members of the public 

may provide public comment on matters of public concern related to City 

business. No public comment portion shall be included at any emergency, 

special called, or work session meeting of the Mayor and Council;  

b.   Each member of the public wishing to address the City Council shall 

have a total of three (3) minutes during which he/she may address the Mayor 

and Council. No member of the public may address the Council during the 

public comment portion more than once during any meeting. Each member 

must disclose his or her name and address for the record;  



 

c.    No member of the public shall repeat previously stated comments or 

opinions previously stated to the City Council during the meeting;  

 d. No member of the public shall be permitted to make personal, 

impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks to any member of the City 

Council, staff or general public. Any person who makes such remarks, or who 

utters loud, threatening, personal or abusive language, or engages in any 

other disorderly conduct which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes the 

orderly conduct of any meeting shall, at the discretion of the Mayor or a 

majority of the City Council, be barred from further audience before the City 

Council during that meeting;  

(2) Public Hearings. 

a. For matters required by law, or by ordinance, to be accompanied by 

a Public Hearing, such Public Hearing shall be undertaken in 

accordance with the applicable law, or ordinance requiring such 

public hearing.  To the extent the law or ordinance is silent as to the 

procedure to be undertaken at such public hearing, the following 

provisions shall apply: 

i. For matters arising under the City of Fayetteville Unified 

Development Ordinance (i.e. zoning applications, etc.), those 

wishing to speak in favor of the item before the Council, 

including the applicant, shall be given a total of fifteen (15) 

minutes to be heard; those wishing to speak against the item 

before the Council shall be given a total of fifteen (15) minutes 

to be heard.  The City Council may extend the time for public 

hearings arising under the UDO by a majority vote of the 

Council members. 

ii. For other matters requiring a public hearing, but not arising 

under the UDO, there shall be allotted thirty (30) minutes for 

public hearing. Each person wishing to be heard on any such 

matter shall limit his/her presentation to three (3) minutes. All 

comments made during such public hearing shall relate to the 

matter pending before the Council and shall not repeat 

previously stated comments and opinions. The City Council 

may extend the time for public hearings by a majority vote of 

the Council members.” 

Section Two. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances and parts of ordinances 

in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section Three. Effective Date. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of 

adoption unless otherwise stated herein.  

 



ORDAINED, this 18th day of April, 2024. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Councilmember 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 

      

 

 



 
TO:  Mayor and City Council   

 

FROM:  Ray Gibson, City Manager 

   

DATE:    April 10, 2024 

 

SUBJECT:   #0-11-24 – Work Session Procedures Ordinance  

 

 

 

Pursuant to Section 2.06 (“Regular and Special Meetings of Mayor and Council) of the City of 

Fayetteville Charter, the City of Fayetteville is looking to adopt the attached Work Session 

Ordinance that sets forth the order of business for City Council Work Sessions.  

 

The attached Ordinance prescribes standards for items placed on the agenda, public comments, 

and other factors that take place when conducting a City Council Work Session.   



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE  

 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

ORDINANCE #0-11-24 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA TO PRESCRIBE 

THE ORDER OF BUSINESS AT CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSIONS SCHEDULED 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 2.06 (“REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS OF MAYOR 

AND COUNCIL”) OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE’S CHARTER.  

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have full power and authority to provide for the 

execution of all powers, functions, rights, privileges, duties and immunities of the city, its officers, 

agencies, or employees granted by the City of Fayetteville’s Charter or by state law; and, 

WHEREAS, the municipal government of the City of Fayetteville (hereinafter “City”) and 

all powers of the City are vested in the Mayor and Council. The Mayor and Council shall be the 

legislative body of the City; and, 

WHEREAS, every official act of the Mayor and Council which is to become law shall be 

by ordinance; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2.06 of the City Charter of the City of Fayetteville, the 

Mayor and Council shall fix the date and time of regular meetings and work sessions of the Mayor 

and Council by ordinance;  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have, pursuant to Ordinance No. 0-10-24, established 

that Work Sessions shall be conducted on the last Tuesday of every month at 9:00 am;  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that it is reasonable and appropriate 

to establish the items that are appropriate for consideration at a Work Session and the procedure 

for establishing the Agenda therefor.  

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Fayetteville hereby ordains as 

follows:  

Section 1. Work Session Agenda. The City Manager, in cooperation with the City Clerk and the 

Mayor, shall prepare and publish an Agenda for each Work Session sufficiently in advance of the 

Work Session so that it may be distributed and published as prescribed by law. 

Section 2. Matters Appearing on Agenda. Matters appearing on the Agenda may include:  



(a) such matters as are, in the opinion of the City Manager, City Clerk, or Mayor, of such 

complexity that in-depth discussion among the Mayor, Council, and Staff is reasonable 

and necessary prior to the meeting at which the item is to be considered and voted upon; 

(b) matters related to the City’s long-term planning and strategy;   

(c) matters in which the City Manager or City Staff are seeking input and advice from the 

Mayor and Council;  

(d) reports from the City Manager and Staff regarding the status of any project or initiative 

of the City; and  

(e) such other matters as are deemed reasonable and appropriate for discussion at a Work 

Session by the City Manager, Mayor, or City Council. 

Section 3.  Matters Not to Appear on Work Session Agenda.  The following matters shall not 

appear on a Work Session Agenda: 

(a) matters requiring a public hearing prior to adoption; and 

(b) discussion, consideration or presentations regarding any pending application for the 

rezoning, the grant or denial of any use permit, variance, or the approval or disapproval 

of any site plan, preliminary plat or final plat of any project within the City 

Section 4. Public Comment.  The Agenda for a Work Session shall not include any time for Public 

Comment, such Public Comment being more appropriately heard at Regular Meetings of the 

Mayor and Council. 

Section Four. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section Five. Effective Date. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption 

unless otherwise stated herein.  

ORDAINED, this 18th Day of April, 2024. 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   Richard J. Hoffman, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       T. Joe Clark, Council Member 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Chelsea Siemen, Interim City Clerk   Niyah Glover, Council Member 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Council Member 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Council Member    


	Top
	1.	Regular Minutes
	3-21-24 - City Council

	2.	Work Session Minutes
	3-26-24 - Work Session

	3.	Consider #0-02-24 and #0-03-24
	Staff Report - FLU Amendment-Rezoning Render Fayetteville
	Table Request - 2
	Request to Table
	Legal description_Crescent Communities
	Rezoning impact form
	Boundary Survey_Crescent Communities
	Rezoning Application and Checklist 08 11 22 DER
	Comp plan amendment app (Render Fayetteville)
	Resized Boundary Survey_Crescent Communities
	Water and Sewer Availability_Crescent Communities
	Site Plan_Crescent Communities
	Site Plan with imagery_Crescent Communities
	Resized Site Plan_Crescent Communities
	LOI_Crescent Communities
	Board of Education Letter_Crescent Communities
	#0-02-24 - Render Fayette_FLUM Amendment
	#0-03-24 - Render Fayette Rezoning

	4.	#0-8-24 - FY24 Mid-Year Budget Amendment
	Memo O-8-24
	#0-8-24  Mid-year Budget Amendment

	5.	Step One Annexation - Jackson tract (Banks RD)
	Staff Report - Step One Annexation_Banks RD
	Step One Application
	2024 04 17 Staff memo F-ville 2024 Parcel 0532 008 Banks Road

	6.	R-18-24 - Resolution to Adopt CIE
	Staff Report - Adoption Resolution
	R-18-24 - Adoption Resolution (original)

	7.	R-19-24 - Resolution to Adopt Local Amendments to Plumbing Code
	Staff Report - Adoption Resolution
	R-19-24 - Adoption Resolution (original)

	8.	R-20-24 - Severance Policy
	R-20-24 - Memo
	R-20-24-Severance Policy

	9.	#0-9-24 - Amendments to Purchasing Policy
	Memo # 0-9-24
	#0-9-24

	10.	#0-11-24 - Public Hearing Procedures
	#0-10-24 - Memo
	#0-10-24 - Public Hearings - Clean

	11.	#0-11-24 - Work Session Procedures
	#0-11-24 - Memo
	#0-11-24

	Bottom



